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Chairman’s Statement
TERE

To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of In Construction
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
you with the annual report for the year ended 31 March 2017
(the “Financial Year 2016/17").

Founded in 1996, our Company is an experienced general
and foundation contractor serving the Hong Kong building
and construction industries by offering quality and flexible
solutions to our customers. Using our ability to solve different
and complex issues on construction projects, we continue
to build trust and credibility with our existing and new
customers. We could not have done it without the support of
our business partners who have been working with us job-by-
job over the years. The implementation of our self-developed,
successful formula in project management, together with our
strong bond with our customers and partners, has enabled
us to withstand the up and down market conditions that we
experienced in the last two decades.

In the coming year, we believe the construction market in
Hong Kong will remain under pressure due to the political
environments. Our business has been primarily focusing in the
Hong Kong private sector. However, wanton filibustering in
the legislative council has led to prolonged delay on granting
funds for new public works in the last 2 years, which has
driven more and more public sector contractors to tender
work in the private sector in order to avoid idling of their
resources. As a result, the private sector market has become
highly competitive and under fierce competition.

When faced with cut-throat competition among contractors
in tendering for new projects which have been widely
commented in the media and among peers, we are mindful
not to reduce our profit margin without considering the
negative impact to our shareholders’ interests. Nevertheless,
we remain confident and are well-positioned in the market as
our operation model of contracting works allows us flexibility
to remain resilient to adverse impact. In this financial year,
facing such steep competition, we are still able to be awarded
3 new contracts with an aggregate contract sum of HK$186.3
million.

We are therefore pleased to report that our financial
position remained strong and continued to improve. Current
ratio increased to 4.8 times and gearing ratio substantially
decreased to 1.9% despite an interim dividend of HK$83.0
million being declared and paid during the financial year.
With our results being satisfactory overall, our board shall
recommend a final dividend of HK$0.1 per share.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE (B)

Looking ahead, we remain positive about the prospects of the
construction market of Hong Kong, with the Government'’s
continued commitment to infrastructure investments and
housing policy by various short, medium and long term land
supply initiatives. We will continue to adhere to our strategy
of focusing on ‘design and build’ projects and maintaining
strong financial position to meet the requirements of future
potential projects ahead. Our management team is convinced
that we will continue to build value over the medium to long
term for our shareholders.

On the behalf of our board, | would like to express our sincere
gratitude to our management and all our staff for their hard
work and dedication, as well as our shareholders, business
associates and other professional parties for their support
throughout the year.

Lau Pak Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Highlights
i
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER R DT

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is engaged as a contractor in the foundation
industry in Hong Kong, undertaking foundation works as
well as associated works including demolition works, site
formation works, ground investigation field works and
general building works for local customers.

Business Review

The Group was engaged to undertake foundation and
associated works in the private sector construction projects in
Hong Kong, with an emphasis on design and build projects
and on undertaking the role as a main contractor.

The Group places emphasis on design and build projects
because of the flexibility and capability in coming up with
foundation design plan that suits its customers’ requirements
and the site conditions. During the Financial Year 2016/17,
the Group has successfully carried out construction works
with alternative design which not only complies with the
technical requirements but also be more cost efficient for
“design and build” contracts. The cost efficient proposals
allow the Group to offer its customers more competitive
pricing and at the same time secure its profit margin for the
year.

During the Financial Year 2016/17, three foundation projects
with an aggregate contract value of HK$186.3 million
were awarded to the Group. Four foundation projects were
completed. As at 31 March 2017, five foundation projects
with the outstanding contract sum of HK$195.0 million were
in progress.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR D (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Business Review (continued)

Year of award/project

BRFE HA

& 3R B R ()

R ()

Type of contract
BHEE

Status as at

31 March 2017
R=Z—tF
ZA=+—BHH®R

Year 2013-2014
CE-=EF FIFE
Peel Street/Graham Street, Central

hIRB A, R

Year 2014-2015

—E R —E-AFE

Perkins Road, Happy Valley

S E RN E

A Kung Ngam Road, Shau Kei Wan
HEEMALE

Fuk Chak Street and Ka Shin Street, Tai Kok Tsui
ANAEREFREES

Year 2015-2016
—E—AR T NFE
Queen’s Road Central, Central
FIREFAETF

King’s Road, Quarry Bay
HIRBREE

Year 2016-2017

—E-RE_E—FEF

Cheung Sha, Lantau Island

RUEE L&D

Kai Tak Road, Kowloon City

NEER RN E

St. Paul’s Primary Catholic School, Happy Valley
S EBERERFHNE

8/ In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2017

Design and build
et R

Design and build
et Rk
Design and build
Rt K&
Design and build
Rt MiE

Design and build
Rt MR
Design and build
WRET M &

Design and build
Rt K&
Design and build
et R
Build only
Bk

Completed
2xT

Completed
2xT

Work in progress
2
Completed
25T

Work in progress

22
Completed

Bl

Work in progress
e
Work in progress
ZeE
Work in progress
e



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRRS N (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Financial Review

During the Financial Year 2016/17, there were 15 projects
contributing revenue and gross profit of approximately
HK$370.2 million and HK$144.9 million, respectively,
whereas revenue and gross profit for the Financial Year
2015/16 of HK$497.3 million and HK$130.8 million,
respectively were contributed by 18 projects. Top five projects
contributed revenue amounted to HK$317.9 million (2016:
HK$352.3 million), in which the top project contributed
40.2% of the total revenue.

The Group recorded an increase in gross profit margin to
39.1% for the Financial Year 2016/17 from 26.3% for
the Financial Year 2015/16. Such increase was primarily
attributable to, among other factors, recognition of
additional profits due to contribution by a few foundation
projects with relatively high profit margin compared with the
overall gross profit margin of last financial year.

Administrative and other operating expenses decreased by
approximately HK$1.1 million to approximately HK$26.5
million, compared with approximately HK$27.6 million of
Financial Year 2015/16, which was mainly due to the listing
expenses of approximately HK$4.5 million incurred in the
Financial Year 2015/16, offsetted by increase of depreciation
and staff salaries by HK$1.4 million and HK$1.9 million,
respectively in the Financial Year 2016/17.

As a result, net profit for the Financial Year 2016/17 increased
by HK$14.6 million or 15.9% to HK$106.7 million, from the
last financial year of HK$92.1 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRES T (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Highly regulated industry

The foundation industry is a highly regulated industry and
the Group is required to maintain certain registrations under
the laws of Hong Kong. In order to renew and maintain
these registrations, the Group is required to comply with
certain criteria set by the relevant governmental departments
and authorities such as the Buildings Department and the
Development Bureau. These include the maintenance of
certain financial criteria such as working capital level, the
adequacy of our management structure and the appropriate
experience and qualification of our personnel.

Any suspension of or a failure to maintain or renew the
Group's registrations could materially and adversely affect the
Group's business.

Uncertainty in construction progress

Due to the nature of foundation works, the foundation
and structure of any buildings adjacent to the Group’s
construction sites may be affected or damaged during the
construction process.

The Group may incur additional cost and time in carrying
out remedial works and this may cause material delay in
completing a project. The Group may face claims from
customers for losses and for liquidated damages due to
delay. Further, the Group may also be exposed to claims and
disputes from third parties arising from damage caused to the
adjacent buildings. Such claims, legal and other proceedings
may affect the Group’s reputation and also increase the costs
of the projects undertaken by the Group, resulting in adverse
impact on the financial performance of the Group.

Failure to bid new contract

The Group’s business relies on successful tenders that
determine the award of contracts for foundation works and/
or associated works. Given the non-recurring nature of these
contract awards and the fact that the Group does not have
long-term commitment with its customers, the number of
contracts awarded to the Group may vary from year to year.

Upon the completion of its contracts on hand, the Group's
financial performance may be adversely affected if the Group
is unable to secure new tenders or obtain new contract
awards with comparable contract sums or at all.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRRS N (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Uncertain external factors

Despite the fact that the construction industry is one of the
traditional core industries in Hong Kong and it is currently
benefitting from strong housing needs and large government
infrastructure projects, the construction industry may suffer
adverse impact in the event of any change in government
policies, sudden economic setback and unanticipated natural
disasters. Since our customers are mostly private sector
property developers, the future growth and profitability of
the foundation industry largely depends on the continued
prosperity of the property market and the construction
industry in Hong Kong.

Although the Group has a number of contracts on hand,
these external factors may affect the number of new
construction projects available in the private sector in medium
to long term.

Relationships with Customers, Working
Partners and Employees

The Group maintains long-term relationships with its
customers and working partners (including subcontractors,
suppliers and consultants), some of which have established
more than 10 years of working relationship with the Group.
The close working relationship can also be demonstrated by
the increasing number of customer portfolios and continuous
cooperation with working partners which may be engaged
by the Group in one or more of its projects at the same
time. Building successful long-term relationships with them
is a key element of the Group’s business model, which is
closely interlinked with all the other elements of its model.
Successful long-term relationships are built on trust — a trust
that the Group is able to provide quality service and excellent
customer experience. To achieve this, the Group needs
experienced people with the right skills and capabilities as
well as continuous supports from its working partners.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRES T (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(continued)

Relationships with Customers, Working
Partners and Employees (continued)

The Group also maintains a very stable and experienced
management team and an amicable long-term relationship
with its employees. The Group has a low staff turnover rate of
5% in the project management team in 2017 (2016: 5%) and
many of the Group'’s skilled employees have worked with the
Group for a number of years. The Group’s key management
team comprises three executive Directors and the Financial
Controller, the biography of each is set out under the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
in this report. The Group’s experienced management team,
coupled with a stable pool of skilled labour, is one of its key
drives in delivering high quality work to customers in order to
attain high customers’ satisfaction.

Environmental Policies

The Group places an emphasis on environmental protection
when undertaking its projects. The Group was awarded
the ISO 14001:2004 (environment management system
accreditation). The current ISO 14001:2004 certificate is
valid from 3 September 2014 until 3 September 2017. When
preparing the tender documents, the Group will take into
consideration the environmental protection requirements
of potential customers as well as the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection. The
Group's safety and environmental officers are responsible
for ensuring that the Group satisfies the applicable laws and
regulations requirements and identifying and reporting on
environmental issues to our project management team.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulation

The Group mainly undertakes foundation works and
associated works for construction projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and is thus subject to the rules and
regulations implemented by the Buildings Department which
regulates contractors in the private sector. The Directors
confirmed that during the Financial Year 2016/2017 and
up to the date of this report, the Group had obtained all
the registrations and certifications required for its business
and operations in Hong Kong, and had complied with the
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong in all material
respects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWR DN (&)
LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND #REIEE - K ERREARSE
CAPITAL STRUCTURE 1B
As at 31 March
R=RA=+—H
2017 2016
ZE—tF —ZTF
Current ratio mENtE = 4.8 3.9
Gearing ratio’ BEAEHLE 1.9% 5.9%
Note: B
1. Gearing ratio is calculated based on debts including payables incurred 1. BEAGBHRZEB(PELFE—MRELB

not in the ordinary course of business divided by the total equity as at
the reporting dates.

Current ratio increased from 3.9 times as at 31 March 2016
to 4.8 times as at 31 March 2017, mainly due to reduction
of trade payables. Gearing ratio decreased from 5.9% as at
31 March 2016 to 1.9% as at 31 March 2017, mainly due
to repayment of loans from shareholders of HK$9.0 million
during Financial Year 2016/17.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had cash and bank balances
of HK$96.1 million (2016: HK$229.6 million), of which
HK$59.1 million (2016: HK$47.3 million) were restricted bank
balances. Such restricted bank balances were held for the
purpose of the issuance of surety bonds for our projects and
requirements of our general banking facilities. As at 31 March
2017, the Group had no bank overdrafts (2016: HK$Nil).

The capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of
HK$326.7 million and debts of HK$6.3 million as at 31 March
2017. Particulars of the bank loans and other borrowings of
the Group as at 31 March 2017 are set out in notes 18 and
19 to the financial statements.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash management.
Apart from certain debts including obligations under finance
leases and bank loan, the Group did not have any material
outstanding debts as at 31 March 2017. Payment to settle
trade payable represented the significant part of the cash
outflow of the Group. Taking into account the light debt
leverage, the Group is able to generate cash and meet
upcoming cash requirements. In any case, the Group may
utilise its banking facilities of HK$160.0 million, of which the
unutilised and unrestricted banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$131.2 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRES T (&)

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 43 full-time employees as at 31 March 2017
(2016: 54). The Group offers competitive remuneration
package that is based on overall market rates and employee
performance, as well as the performance of the Group.
Remuneration package is comprised of salary, a performance-
based bonus, and other benefits including training and
provident funds.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no capital commitments as at 31 March 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, the
Group had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2017.

CHARGE OVER ASSETS

Save as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, as
at 31 March 2017, the Group had restricted bank balances
which were charged to banks to secure bank facilities granted
to the Group and the issuance of performance bonds. The
Group also had certain construction machinery pledged to
secure a bank loan. As at 31 March 2017, the net book value
of the machinery pledged to secure a bank loan was HK$5.2
million (2016: HK$6.8 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES, AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There were no significant investments held, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 March 2017. There is no
other plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31
March 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRRS N (&)

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing will be utilised in
accordance with the proposed applications set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the
prospectus of the Company dated 31 March 2015 (the
“Prospectus”) and the announcement of the Company
dated 7 August 2015. The below table sets out the proposed
applications of the net proceeds and actual usage up to 31
March 2017:

LHAEREFEAR
EWABFEEFRESIREARR AR
E-RF=A=+—HZERER (8K
BRDIRKEERAMERERE ] —HR
RARBRHA_Z—RFN\ALBZRAMH
Pz BEREER - TRENBE—F
—tF=A=1+—HIEWREFIRF
ERERERAR

Actual usage up

Proposed to 31 March

application 2017

BZE

—E—+F

=A=t—-HL

RERZ WER AR

HK$'million HK$'million

BEET BEBT

Hiring of additional staff BEEFEIIET 14.9 1.6
Acquisition of additional WA BB ME R AN R

machinery and equipment 29.9 29.9
Financing for the issue of surety BARIRIE B BITHER

bonds for future projects BEFEE 44.7 29.2

General working capital —MREEED 10.0 10.0

99.5 70.7

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Taking into account the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region’s policy in increasing land
supply and commitment to infrastructure investments, the
Group expects an optimistic growth in the construction
industry in the long run. Despite the vigorous competition in
Hong Kong construction industry, the Board is confident with
the Group’s future development in net profit and scale of
operations due to its long established reputation and proven
ability. To maintain its competitive edge, the Group continues
to adhere to its business strategy, by expanding its capacity to
capture more business opportunities, reinforcing Its capability
in foundation design and project management skills and
offering qualitative and flexible solution to its customers.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERGHNEEAEBRBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Pak Man(ZJ{832), aged 62, is our Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, executive Director and General Manager of
the Group. Mr. Lau, together with Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong,
are the founders of the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible for
overall strategic development, project management and
client management of the Group. Mr. Lau is also a director of
In Construction Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, since 20 December 1996. Mr. Lau obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from the
University of Leeds in July 1979. Mr. Lau has nearly 26 years
of extensive experience in the construction industry in Hong
Kong since 1991. Prior to founding In Construction Limited
in December 1996, Mr. Lau was the project manager and
contract manager of Fong On Construction & Engineering Co
Ltd. between January 1991 till December 1994 and January
1995 till December 1996, respectively, mainly responsible for
H-piling foundations, supply and installations projects as well
as a construction and redevelopment project. Mr. Lau has
been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since July 1992, a chartered engineer of the Institution of Civil
Engineers, London, England since November 1984, a member
of the Institution of Civil Engineers since December 1983,
a member of the Institute of Highways and Transportation,
London, England since March 1983 and a registered
professional engineer (civil) of Engineers Registration Board.
Mr. Lau is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit.

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong (#8588 ), aged 62, is our executive
Director and the Director — Construction of the Group. Mr.
Cheng, together with Mr. Lau Pak Man, are the founders
of the Group and is responsible for overseeing the tender
process including foundation design and project budget, as
well as quality control of our projects. Mr. Cheng has acted
as a director of In Construction Limited since 20 December
1996. Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in October
1977. In the course of his career, Mr. Cheng has accumulated
more than 20 years of comprehensive experience in the
construction industry. Between May 1989 and August 1992,
Mr. Cheng worked in China Overseas Foundation Engineering
Limited as a director and deputy general manager.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEARBE (&)

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit (E8520\) , aged 45, is our executive
Director and the Director — Operations of the Group.
Ms. Kwan is responsible for project management and
coordination, as well as daily operations of the Group. Ms.
Kwan has been appointed a director of In Construction
Limited since 1 December 2014. Ms. Kwan obtained a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Management
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
November 1994. Ms. Kwan has accumulated over 20 years
of experience in the construction industry. She joined In
Construction Limited as an assistant manager in April 1997.
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Kwan worked at Sam Woo
Engineering Equipment Limited from February 1995 to April
1997. During her employment there, she has worked as an
assistant manager. Ms. Kwan is the spouse of Mr. Lau Pak
Man.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Chi Kin (#£8), aged 63, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed by the Company on
26 March 2015. Mr. Leung obtained a high diploma in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic) in November
1976. In the course of his career, Mr. Leung has accumulated
over 40 years of working experience in auditing, accounting,
taxation and financial management. Mr. Leung is currently a
practicing Certified Public Accountant and managing director
of Chang Leung Hui & Li C.P.A. Limited. He is also a Certified
Tax Adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong for the
year 2017. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Between
June 1976 and November 1980, Mr. Leung worked in Lowe
Bingham & Matthews Price Waterhouse & Co., and then
started his own accounting practice in January 1981 and has
been in public practice up to now.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESREREEASRERE (&)

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis(#£&%), aged 69, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed by the Company on 26
March 2015. Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
in November 1969, after that he obtained a degree of
Doctor of Philosophy from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1972. Mr. Lam has over 45 years of experience
in engineering. Mr. Lam is currently the managing director
and founder of LR Construction Technologies Limited since
August 2012, the managing director and co-founder of LR
Construction and Consultancy Limited since April 2012, and
the managing director and co-founder of LR loT Limited. since
June 2009. From November 1996 to August 2004, Mr. Lam
was a principal lecturer of the Vocational Training Council.
From 1976 to 1977, and from 1986 to 1987, Mr. Lam was an
appointed lecturer in the Department of Civil and Structural
Engineering of the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has
been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers since
November 1975 and is also a registered professional engineer
of Engineers Registration Board.

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi
Meng) (EF#8), aged 54, is an independent non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 26 March 2015.
Mr. Yau is qualified as a Barrister-at-law in Hong Kong
since March 2011. Mr. Yau obtained a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electronic and Electrical Engineering from
Loughborough University of Technology, England in July
1987. He subsequently obtained a Juris Doctor in Laws and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University of
Hong Kong in November 2008 and July 2010, respectively.
Mr. Yau has over 20 years of experience in electric power
engineering. Mr. Yau worked in CLP Power Hong Kong
Limited between January 1991 and April 2010, during which
Mr. Yau undertook various positions, with his last position
being a senior project engineer at CLP Engineering Limited, a
subsidiary of CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, in April 2010.

Mr. Yau has been a member of the Institution of Engineering
and Technology, England (formerly known as the Institution
of Electrical Engineers, England) and a chartered electrical
engineer of the Engineering Council, England since 2000. He
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since 2001 and a member of the Chartered Institution of
Building Services Engineers, England since 2004. Mr. Yau has
also been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators
since 2011.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEARBE (&)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Ho Kam Fung (fi#8#), aged 37, joined us as
the Financial Controller of the Group since 1 February
2017, and was appointed as our company secretary on 7
February 2017. Mr. Ho is responsible for the accounting
and financial functions, internal control as well as the
company secretary affairs of the Group. Mr. Ho is a full
member of CPA Australia. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Commerce and a Master Degree in International Business
from the University of Wollongong in Australia. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ho previously worked for Hong
Kong listed companies for more than 6 years and held
various positions as finance manager, company secretary
and authorized representative. He also worked at two
international accounting firms for about 5 years. He has
over 10 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
financial management.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Board presents this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in foundation works
as well as associated works including demolition works,
site formation works, ground investigation field works and
general building works. The activities and particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are shown under note 12 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 58 of
this report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposes to recommend, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
8 September 2017 (the “2017 AGM"), a final dividend of
HK$0.1 per ordinary share of the Company for the Financial
Year 2016/17 (2015/16: HK$0.034 per ordinary share). It is
expected that the proposed final dividend, if approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the 2017 AGM, will be
payable on or about 29 September 2017 to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 15 September 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the
2017 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Monday, 4 September 2017 to Friday, 8
September 2017, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
Shareholders of the Company are reminded to ensure that all
completed share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 1 September 2017.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(continued)

In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed on Friday, 15 September 2017, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
Shareholders of the Company are reminded to ensure that all
completed share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 14 September
2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board is not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 March 2017
and up to the date of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements in this report
and the Prospectus, is set out on page 116. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements in this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Financial Year 2016/17 in
the share capital are set out in note 20(c) to the financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Financial
Year 2016/17.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2017, the Company's reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$143,374,000.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”), or the law of
Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated.

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors of the Company

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2017
and up to the date of this report, are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Pak Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Chi Kin

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi Meng)

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation at every annual general meeting of the
Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man
Norman shall retire from office by rotation at the 2017
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the said meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

(b) Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr.
Lau Pak Man, Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan
Kit Sum, Kit are also directors in certain subsidiaries of
the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter
with the Company. The appointment of each of the Directors
is for a period of three years and shall continue thereafter
until being terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provide that every Director shall be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against liabilities
(to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) incurred by him
as such Director in the execution of his duties or otherwise
in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any such director. The Company has
taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or during the
financial year ended 31 March 2017.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

Save for Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong'’s interest in Longo Piling
Company, details of which were set out in the section
headed “Relationships with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus, none of the Directors nor the controlling
shareholders of the Company nor their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
that competed or might compete with the business of the
Group in the Financial Year 2016/17.

Mr. Lau Pak Man, Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit, In Play Limited and
Kinetic Kingdom Limited, being the controlling shareholders
of the Company declared that they have complied with the
undertakings given under the Deed of Non-competition as
disclosed in the Prospectus. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong, Longo
Piling Company and Wealth Celebration Limited declared
that they have complied with the undertakings given under
the Longo Deed of Non-competition as disclosed in the
Prospectus.

The independent non-Executive directors were delegated
with the authority to review, on an annual basis, the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition and the Longo
Deed of Non-competition. The independent non-executive
Directors were not aware of any non-compliance of both
Deeds of Non-competition since the respective dates of the
deeds and up to the date of this report.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” of this report.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which (a) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares: RBFR -
Approximate
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of the
Company
Capacity/ Number ER N
Name of Director Nature of Interest of shares CEITRAN
EEnE B0 RRHE BRHEHAE BAEDE
Mr. Lau Pak Man Beneficial owner 3,520,000 0.42%
ElE et BEmia A
Interest in a controlled corporation MNete D 270,000,000 32.53%
RE PR B MRS =
Interest of spouse Note2 60,000,000 7.23%
AR B 4E 25 (D)
Total 333,520,000 40.18%
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong Beneficial owner 4,780,000 0.58%
LR S ST EnEBA
Interest in a controlled corporation Nete3 270,000,000 32.53%
Nt AN sop Eniiy
Total 274,780,000 33.11%
=
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit Interest in a controlled corporation Mete4 60,000,000 7.23%
E2) Ao AT S A B R )
Interest of spouse Note > 273,520,000 32.95%
TR B di 25 (HiEs)
Total 333,520,000 40.18%
ast
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

1. In Play Limited is 100.0% owned by Mr. Lau Pak Man. Mr. Lau Pak Man
is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by In Play Limited
under the SFO.

2. Mr. Lau Pak Man is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Pak Man is deemed to be interested in the same number
of shares in which Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is deemed to be interested.

3. Wealth Celebration Limited is 100.0% owned by Mr. Cheng Wing
Cheong. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong is therefore deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Wealth Celebration Limited under the SFO.

4. Kinetic Kingdom Limited is 100.0% owned by Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit. Ms.
Kwan Kit Sum Kit is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Kinetic Kingdom Limited under the SFO.

5. Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is the spouse of Mr. Lau Pak Man. By virtue of
the SFO, Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is deemed to be interested in the same

number of shares in which Mr. Lau Pak Man is deemed to be interested.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 16 April 2015. The register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31
March 2017, the following shareholders, other than those
disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interest in Securities”, had notified the Company
of its interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO:
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Long positions in the shares: RHEFR -
Approximate
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of the
Company
Name of Number (ERNE|
substantial shareholder Capacity of shares 2EITRAN
TERRER 54 RHEE R EE:
In Play Limited Beneficial owner 270,000,000 32.53%
EmliB A
Wealth Celebration Limited Beneficial owner 270,000,000 32.53%
Enlis A
Kinetic Kingdom Limited Beneficial owner 60,000,000 7.23%
Enlis A
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEHREREER

The percentage of purchases and sales for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017 attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 17.0%
— five largest suppliers combined 60.4%
Sales

— the largest customer 40.2%
— five largest customers combined 85.9%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had an
interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in securities”
above, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company which requires compliance with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of material related party transactions undertaken in
the usual course of business of the Group are set out in note
24 to the financial statements. However, these transactions
were either exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, or did not fall under the
definition of connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available and to
the best belief and knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the public float as required by the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to
the date of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Financial Year
2016/2017 is included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this report on pages 7 to 15 and forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund
prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Save
as the aforesaid, the Group did not participate in any other
pension schemes during the Financial Year 2016/17.

In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2017

BERS
REE-Z—+E=A=+—HILEE -
RABIWEBER HNIFERERHBE
SFEMHRANE1AAZIB THRIR - 2k
BN ERBLERRTE - RAEE A EER
BRPEITHEREE A XS FBHRY
TEIRERWGE24 - A ZERHUER
BB ETREFE14AZE THER - A
R R AL ERTE - s E EThR A
FUAZATENEER SR IFEBER
gjo

RERMBRE

182 B AT 19 A R B TR (S SR
Mo REE-F—LEF=A=t+—BILE
BFEREERREASL  FAAEHS
BETRAREZ ARBRE -

ES AR

L e e Ul GIEGIES
BEERNARSEE7E 15 ANERE
RRAN - AEREEERE S -

BARET S

AR B2 e B I 485 BB
WS BIEPITRE MR DTS - B
EXFRRS - REER T X, —+LB
B (30 4 2 BT E AR AR B3 8 -



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS UNDER

RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 26 June 2015 and 6 January 2016, the Company as
guarantor and In Construction Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as borrower, entered
into facility agreements relating to a HK$80 million general
banking and term loan facilities (the “Facilities 1”) and
HK$10 million revolving term loan facilities (the “Facilities
2") with licensed banks in Hong Kong as lenders (“Lender”),
respectively. The maturity date of the Facilities 1 and the
Facilities 2 are three years and six months from the date of
drawdown, respectively.

Pursuant to the Facilities 1, the Company, as guarantor, has
undertaken to the Lender that (i) Mr. Lau Pak Man, Mr. Cheng
Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit will maintain an
aggregate beneficial shareholding of not less than 50% of
the entire issued share capital of the Company; and (ii) any of
Mr. Lau Pak Man, Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit
Sum Kit will remain as the chairman of the Company.

Pursuant to the Facilities 2, the Company, as the guarantor,
has undertaken to the Lender that Mr. Lau Pak Man and Mr.
Cheng Wing Cheong will together ultimately hold more than
50% of the entire issued share capital of the Company.

A breach of the above undertaking will constitute an event
of default, and the lenders may cancel or suspend the
facilities and demand repayment of any outstanding amount
under the facility agreement together with interest accrued
thereon.

The above undertaking contains covenants relating to specific
performance of the controlling shareholders of the Company
which was subject to disclosure under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint KPMG as the auditor of the Company.
By order of the Board

Lau Pak Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Corporate Governance Report
Y «MsAiﬁ_d:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed
in achieving a high standard of corporate governance and
leading the Group to attain better results and improve
its corporate image with effective corporate governance
procedures.

Since Listing, the Board is of the opinion that the Company
had adopted, applied and complied with the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except for the
deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code.

According to provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Pak
Man is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, responsible
for overall strategic development, project management and
client management of the Group. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in Mr. Lau Pak Man has the benefit of ensuring
consistent and continuous planning and execution of the
Company'’s strategies. The Board considers that the balance
of power and authority, accountability and independent
decision-making under the present arrangement will not be
impaired in light of the diverse background and experience
of the independent non-executive Directors, and the
composition of the Board which comprises equal number of
independent non-executive Directors and executive Directors
also provides added independence to the Board. Further,
the Audit Committee composed exclusively of independent
non-executive Directors has free and direct access to the
Company's external auditors and independent professional
advisers when it considers necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BERHE (&)

(A) THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board consists of six Directors including Mr. Lau
Pak Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit as
the executive Directors and Mr. Leung Chi Kin, Mr.
LAM Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman
(also known as lao Chi Meng) as the independent non-
executive Directors. Their name and biographical details
are set in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this report. The overall
management of the Company’s operation was vested
in the Board.

Save that Mr. Lau Pak Man and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit
are spouses, there are no financial, business, family or
other material relationships among members of the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board has
at all times met the requirements of rules 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The three Independent Non-Executive Directors
represent half of the Board, the proportion of which
is higher than what is required by Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive
directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-
third of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the
interest of shareholders.

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, and monitor
the performance of the senior executives. The Directors
have to make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management
officers of the Company was maintained by the
Company with coverage for any legal liabilities which
may arise in the course of performing their duties.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RERHE (B

(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors
along with other senior executives, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and
direction as adopted by the Board from time to time,
and conducting the day-to-day operations of the
Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet
regularly to review the performance of the businesses
of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources
and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the
delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct of dealings in securities of the
Company by Directors (the “Model Code”). Upon
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the
Financial Year 2016/17.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play
a significant role in the Board by virtue of their
independent judgment and their views carry significant
weight in the Board’s decision. They bring an
impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategies,
performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess
extensive academic, professional and industry expertise
and management experience and have provided their
professional advice to the Board.

The Board also considers that the independent non-
executive Directors can provide independent advice
on the Company’s business strategies, results and
management so as to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BERHE (&)

(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(continued)

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years commencing from 26
March 2015. None of the independent non-executive
Directors held any other offices in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the
Company. All independent non-executive Directors
have confirmed their independence to the Company
in accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract
or a letter of appointment with the Company for
a specific term. Such term is subject to his/her re-
election by the Company at an annual general meeting
("AGM") upon retirement. Article 112 of the Articles
provides that any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the members of
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles, at each
AGM of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Lam Chi
Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman shall retire
from office by rotation at the next AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said
meeting.

The members of the Company may, at any general
meetings convened and held in accordance with the
Articles, remove a Director by ordinary resolution at any
time before the expiration of his/her period of office
notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or
in any agreement between the Company and such
Director and may by ordinary resolution elect another
person in his/her stead.
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orate Governance Report (continued)

EREE ()

THE BOARD (continued) (A) EE=E(8)
Board Meetings Exgexd
The Board meets reqularly to discuss and formulate the EEgrfemmid kilEAER
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial MEBREREANEERPEERR -
performance of the Group. Directors may participate EFAHALEIUEFBAAN
either in person or through electronic means of DEEE o
communications.
The Board has convened four regular meetings during EEeRAFECARMNA TSRS
the year. The attendance of the respective Directors to FoRESHREZCCEREE
the Board Meetings and the AGM are set out below: BERGHREHIOT
Attendance/Number of
meetings held
EERE BTEBRY
Regular
Board Meetings AGM
EHEEERR RRAFAS
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Lau Pak Man el 4/4 11
(Chariman and Chief Executive Officer) (XRRITBER)

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong HERESLE 4/4 11
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit BRLET 4/4 17
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Leung Chi Kin RERELE 4/4 1"
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MERLE 4/4 n
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEEE 4/4 1n

(also known as lao Chi Meng)

All Directors received training in the form of seminar
and provision of training materials to ensure that he/
she is fully aware of his/her duties and responsibilities as
a director under applicable rules and requirements. All
Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

(A) THE BOARD (continued) (A) EE=2(E)
Board Meetings (continued) ExgeE (@)
Pursuant to the requirements of the Code, all Directors RIETRNRE  2BEFERAAN
should provide their training record to the Company. NERHEEIIRE - REBEESRE
According to the training records provided by the HeiEdlss - BRERNREHER
Directors, the training attended by them during the SMEEIIELR T

reporting period is summarized as follows:

Corporate Governance,
Regulatory Development and

Name of director Trainings on other relevant topics
Espns LEER  EERRREMARIEL
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Lau Pak Man EllEye it v
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong HEELE v
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit BRort v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Leung Chi Kin PHBEE v
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MEHEEE v
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEESE "

(also known as lao Chi Meng)

Corporate Governance Functions R
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate EEQAABTHNLEE SRS
governance duties including: Ei

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies (a) ZEEREFHAAFRIDLEER
and practices on corporate governance; R R ER

(b) to review and monitor the training and by HBHELEEEERSHEE
continuous professional development of ABRIEIIRAFEEHEEE

Directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies (0 HHEREEBEARARAFBKES
and practices on compliance with legal and B NEEEREERE

regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code (d %E ZHLEBEARNE
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) EREZBFHNBRTEURER
applicable to employees and Directors; and FM(wma) &

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the () MIARBEEESFTA -
Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RERHE (B

(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees
and has delegated various responsibilities to the
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”). All the
Board committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference
which are available to shareholders on the websites of
both the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on
26 March 2015 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C3 of the Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on appointments and removal of external auditors;
review and to supervise the financial reporting process
and the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls
and risk management. The Audit Committee meets
regularly with management and external auditors
in reviewing the interim and annual reports of the
Company before submission to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Chi Kin
(being the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Lam Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman
(also known as lao Chi Meng). In compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit
Committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.

3(:;)/ In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2017

(A) ES=E(8H)

EEZEE

FEEEETEKY=_HEEES I
BEEBRESRESZEE 55
REZLZES([BZZET])  #

MEZBe((FWEES]) Rigd
ZE8e([RE%8g]) - 2HES
ZEeHRESANRESERT
ﬁﬁim%ﬁ M #% B i 3 B R AN
UNCIDSE: R D S i

EELZESR R REARNET Eﬁ
T BEABEXRT  AJlhAR
NBEEE ﬂTmI%i%%a
ﬁ’ °

EREEE

PAN/N ﬂ#:* HE=B-+/<H
RYBZEES  WER EMRA
% 3.211& I ki 48 B B 8% 4~ PO <7
B C3ERMBAT s EEBE
#HE BREZESNIEHEAR
%%@%%m;&& ERMESRT
RftEE BERERWBHBRA
&&$$lm%?¢&ﬂﬁéﬁm
B - XL B GMEIEE RIMNPIZ
HAEHEH  ERESRE
RNEIFEHRFEREEER - T
RS HRFERE -

BREARR=ABUINTES
AR BERRELE(BRER
BER) - MEELERTTHE
i o R LT RAIEE 321 AE -
BREARIRAREEEENE
AR -



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

iaf 3

(A)

BERHE (&)

THE BOARD (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee convened three meetings during
the year with attendance of each member as follows;

BEE(HE)

BEREEE ()
ENEBERAFRE(TZRE
# ERAHRDSNT

Attendance/Number of
meetings held

HEREBITERERE
Mr. Leung Chi Kin (Chairman) PIFERHE () 3/3
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MEHESE 3/3
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEEE
(also known as lao Chi Meng) 3/3
Remuneration Committee e P

The Company established the Remuneration
Committee on 26 March 2015 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of our Group; review
performance based remuneration; and ensure none of
our Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members,
being Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao
Chi Meng) (being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit and Mr. Leung Chi
Kin.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting
during the year with the attendance of each member as
follows:

ARRR_ZE—RAF=ZA=+<AH
RFMEZEEE - Wi EmRA
e+ POsFRIEB A ERHMIRTE » 515
EEMEDE - FHZEEeNEE
BEAMASEHMBESRAAE
BEEMNERTWBEREERES
FRMHEER BRIARKRBEENT
B ARBERESTUEETEAS
BB o

HMEERm=aREER  BE
FoEL (FHWEERER) - B2
DT B R S o

FHEZEERNAFERIT-RE
& BRBHFELCENT

Attendance/Number of
meetings held

HERE BITEERH

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also know as EFSEE(FE)
lao Chi Meng) (Chairman)

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit B2t

Mr. Leung Chi Kin RIFER S

17
7
7
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RERHE (B

(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the
annual remuneration (including bonus) of the members
of the senior management of the Group by band for
the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out below:

(A) ES=E(8H)

FHESS (&)
REBTRIZTANEXEBA5 & 1
BHE_Z—+tF=A=+—HIF
B AEESREBEABZFES
B (BIREAL) IREEH I

Number of Senior

Remuneration Band Management
BN £ 2 EREEAEHA
Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 AT AT 1
HK$1,000,001 to up to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T 2 2,000,000 7T 1

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee
on 26 March 2015 with written terms of reference
in compliance with paragraph A.4 of the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment
of Directors and the management of the Board
succession.

The Nomination Committee consists of 3 members,
being Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (being the chairman of
the Nomination Committee), Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong
and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi
Meng).

The Nomination Committee convened one meeting
during the year with the attendance of each member as
follows:
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

(A) EXE(HE)
REZEY ()

(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Attendance/Number of
meetings held

HEREBITEERH
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (Chairman) MEREE (£E) 17
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong BEE B 5 1/1
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEsESE 11
(also known as lao Chi Meng)
Board Diversity Policy EEEHESULBE

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to the talent, skill,
regional and industry experience, background, gender
and other qualities.

The Board will consider putting in place measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such
objectives annually to ensure their appropriateness and
ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy
annually to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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EREE ()

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements
of the Group are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company
on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s
external auditors on the financial statements of the
Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this report.

External Auditor's Remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the remunerations

paid or payable to KPMG in respect of its audit
services and non-audit services are HK$1,000,000
and HK$380,000, respectively. The non-audit services
represent the service fee paid to KPMG for the review
of interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2016. The Audit Committee was
satisfied that the non-audit services in the Financial
Year 2016/17 did not affect the independence of the
auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EREE ()

(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING AND

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publications
and the compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Company does not have an internal audit function
and has engaged an external consultant to conduct an
assessment on the effectiveness of risk management
and internal controls of the Group for the period from
1 October 2015 to 31 December 2016. The Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group and is satisfied
that the Group has complied with the Code in respect
of internal control from the date of Listing up to the
date of this report. The internal control is reviewed
and assessed on an on-going basis by the Executive
Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at
least once each year by the Board.

Company Secretary

The Company has appointed Mr. Ho Kam Fung, who is
an employee of the Company as its Company Secretary.
Mr. Ho has confirmed that for the year under review, he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training. The biography of Mr. Ho is set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this report.

PR R AP ()

A
EFeARAKENNIERE Mg
ATEAR - YRERFUREEE
U EREREERAKEE - IR
R R FRER AR R FE R
BEME BN E B Mm - LR
ETERED - RANRARG)

AR R EERR ST N B AL AL - &
T—ZINERERN T —RFE+A—
Az "F+-A=+—HHH
AT AN 2 B 3L B B 38 K A B B 42
MEMME EFECHRITENIE
EERGNAMRE  WHAEEE £
MHAMEEEARE HHIEFRE
B P RIRRERE c ITE S
SRHER MTE AL S
eEeFFEDET NIRRT

fil o

NAWE
ARAREREMBEEE(RAR
AEE) RARIME - M ELEE T
R REBFE  RE2MTIR
15 @/ N AR RE B 2R3 o IR
MERENARE [EERSRE
BABRE] -

REZEZERERAT




42

/

Corp
1=E

@)

In Construction Holdings Limited

orate Governance Report (continued)

EREE ()

COMPANY SECRETARY AND

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders’ Right

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles extraordinary
general meetings may be convened on the requisition
of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit,
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. Shareholders may follow the procedures set
out above to convene an extraordinary general meeting
for any business specified in such written requisition.

Subject to the provisions of the Articles, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations,
Shareholders may propose a resolution at general
meetings of the Company by following the “Procedures
for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose
a resolution to be resolved at that extraordinary
general meeting. Please refer to the document titled
"Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company’s website for details.

Annual Report 2017
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Shareholders’ Right (continued)

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible
for election as a Director at any general meeting unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration
office of the Company. The period for lodgement of the
notices required will commerce no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the
Company’s website.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional
documents since the Listing Date. The Articles is
available on the websites of both the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at 26/F, Park Avenue Tower, 5 Moreton Terrace,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (email: info@incon.hk).
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (B)

Environmental, Social and Governance
Report

We are pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") Report for the year ended 31 March
2017 in compliance with the applicable code provision set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Guide") as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules. Information on the environmental and social
aspects of the report is set out below whilst information on
the governance aspect is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 30 to 43. During the year ended 31 March
2017, the Company has complied with the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the ESG Guide.

We strive to offer our customers a high degree of service,
quality control and site management in all our foundation
and construction work. We are also committed to fulfill our
corporate social responsibility through working with the key
stakeholders including our employees, suppliers and sub-
contractors. We believe that the stakeholders’ interest must
be taken into account in order to enhance our relationship
with the society and other stakeholders. We have integrated
Environmental, Social and Governance considerations
into daily operations and we believe that our existing
businesses are not expected to pose a material impact on the
environment.

Environmental
Emissions and use of resources

We place an emphasis on environmental protection when
undertaking our projects. Our environmental management
system is accredited with ISO 14001. We have policies in
place to reduce emissions and waste. We conserve resources
for environmental and operating efficiency purposes.

Construction inert waste is disposed to public fill for recycling,
while non-inert waste is reused and recycled by qualified
waste collectors. Wastewater is treated by wastewater
treatment plant on site and recycled within site. Soak-away
pit is adopted so as to avoid water discharge out of sites. Our
teams are encouraged to switch off idle machineries to avoid
energy wastage as well as greenhouse gas emissions. Certain
types of machinery are only used during permitted hours to
reduce noise impact to nearby residents. We conduct regular
air monitoring for Total Suspended Particulates and noise
monitoring for construction noise levels around the sites to
meet the prescribed standards.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

Environmental, Social and Governance

Report (continued)
Environmental

Emissions and use of resources (continued)

We embrace the waste management principle of “Avoid,
Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”. Our project team ensures
efficient use of materials by well designed project plan and
avoid over-ordering by accurate forecast on quantities.
Excavated materials from construction sites are sorted,
segregated and reused as fill materials as much as possible.
Also, metal or timber materials for temporary works are re-
used and recycled among our construction sites if possible.
Through actively monitoring and managing the use of
resources, we aim to reduce our operating costs as well as our
carbon footprints.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Our operating activities are in compliance with applicable
environmental legislation and have no significant impact
on the environment and natural resources. We regularly
assess the environmental risks of our operation, and adopt
preventive measures as necessary to reduce the risks and
ensure the compliance of relevant laws and regulations.

When preparing the tender documents, we take into
consideration the environmental protection requirements
of potential customers as well as the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection.
Throughout our operations, we comply with environmental
protection requirements (e.g. applicable environmental
legislation and BEAM Plus Scheme). In addition to regular
environmental protection inspections, our projects are under
close monitoring of independent environmental protection
consultants.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (B)

Environmental, Social and Governance

Report (continued)
Social

Employment and Labor Practices

We consider employees as our valuable assets and we
consider a respectful and fair working environment to be vital
to the operation of the Group. We ensure strict compliance
with all relevant regulatory standards, particularly the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) in respect of recruitment, compensation, and dismissal.
We treat all the employees equally, and their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their
social identities such as age, gender, marital status, family
status, gender orientation, race, nationality or religion.

Employees are entitled to annual leave, sick leave and
maternity leave. Employees enjoy provident fund scheme and
other benefits such as overtime allowance, subject to the
Group's policies. The level of compensation of our employees
is reviewed annually on a performance basis with reference to
the market standard. We motivate employees by promotion
and salary increment based on results of annual performance
appraisal, and to award discretionary bonus in addition to
basic salary.

Health and Safety

We are determined to ensure that all construction works
are carried out to achieve at practically high health and
safety standards. We consider health and safety at work
are the interests and responsibilities of both the Group and
employees. Employees are required to take reasonable care
for the health and safety of themselves and of others with a
view to maintaining an injury-free workplace.

We are accredited with OHSAS 18001 (Occupational Health
and Safety Assessment Series). All personnel shall comply
with all relevant health and safety legislation as well as the
requirements of OHSAS 18001.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

We have implemented a health and safety management
system at the headquarter and at construction sites. We
are committed to ensure that employees at all levels will
receive appropriate safety training and are competent to
carry out their safety duties. In particular, we provide site
specific induction training programs for employees and
subcontractors to enhance their safety awareness, allocate
safety officers to ensure that we satisfy the applicable
laws and regulations requirements. The health and safety
management system is carried out, monitored and reviewed
by our safety committee.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
health and safety laws and regulations during the year ended
31 March 2017.

Development and Training

We acknowledge the importance of training for the
development of our employees as well as our Group. We
provide appropriate training to enable employees to improve
their job performance and to prepare them for future
development in the Group. We believe this is a mutually
beneficial practice for achieving both personal and corporate
goals as a whole. In particular, induction sessions are
provided for the employees on the information of safety. On-
going safety training on the use of different machinery or
toolbox is provided on a regular basis and records of such
training is kept.

Labour Standards

We do not employ under-age employees, and we do not
engage in forced labour. We have implemented policies
and procedures to prevent, monitor and report the use of
child and forced labour. We expect our sub-contractors and
suppliers to adhere to the same standards of behavior when
working with us. We fully comply with relevant regulations
that prohibit child or forced labour.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (B)

Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (continued)
Supply Chain Management

We evaluate and select suppliers and sub-contractors based
on a wide range of aspects and standards, including but not
limited to the professional qualification, services/products
quality, financial status and integrity. We also put much
emphasis on the legal compliance of their operations in
addition to cost consideration. We advocate the standards
and expectations in respect of environment issues and
labour practices to suppliers and sub-contractors, with the
expectation that they will uphold standards that are similar to
that of the Group.

Product and Service Responsibility

We have experience as a general and foundation contractor
serving the Hong Kong building and construction industries.
Over the last decades, we have completed projects both
for the public and private sectors. In respect of our existing
foundation business, we are a registered specialist contractor
in the categories of foundation, demolition, site formation
and ground investigation field works and registered general
building contractor with the Buildings Department and
are also on the list of approved suppliers of materials and
specialist contractors of the Development Bureau for public
works in the category of land piling (Group II).

We have achieved timely completion on all projects in
the past by good management, technical knowledge and
effective utilisation of plant, machinery and labour resources.
Apart from above, we also provide services in Design & Build
projects. We can offer our customers a high degree of service,
quality control and site management in all our foundation
and construction work and have the requisite knowledge
of work practices and safety procedures required by the
industry. We also pride ourselves on our high standard of
reports and presentations.

Anti-corruption

We aim to maintain high moral standards in conducting
businesses. We believe in fairness and honesty in business
dealing and we do not tolerate corruption, bribery,
extortion, money-laundering and other fraudulent activities
in connection with any of our business operations. Clear
guidelines and code of conduct in the staff handbook are
conveyed to the employees. We have also made available a
whistle-blowing reporting channel to report any suspected
fraud, malpractice, corruption, or any other unethical actions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (continued)
Anti-corruption (continued)

We have strictly adhered to relevant laws and regulations,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the year ended 31 March
2017, there was no legal case or dispute in respect of bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering against employees of
the Group and the Group itself.

Community Investment

We recognise the need to participate in the community and
therefore we both encourage and motivate our employees to
better serve our community at work and during their personal
time. Employees are encouraged to participate in community
enhancement events such as volunteer and fundraising
activities etc.

As the main contractor of the St Paul’s Primary Catholic
School project commenced during the year, we are
committed to avoid causing any damages to all the features
of the existing Grade Il historic school building constructed
in 1907. We are prepared to incur extra costs and time
for complying with all the requirements imposed by the
Government Departments, working along with conservation
and heritage consultant and providing all necessary protective
and precautionary measures to this heritage building.
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KPMG

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZRETHRE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
In Construction Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
In Construction Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 58 to 115, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2017, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2017 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEHE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming

ERETSE
PARETFARRERMINEXHE - R
RYERRAMBERRNEARR/EEN
B - GUEEHEEERMEBEBREY
BHmERHASRRETRIE - HMTE
HELERREHEBNER -

our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Contract accounting estimates

Refer to accounting policies (h) & (p) and notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of Our audit procedures to assess contract accounting
foundation construction works in Hong Kong totalling estimates included the following:

HK$370 million for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Contract revenue and profit are recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of contract revenue for
work performed to date to the estimated total revenue
for a fixed price contract. The recognition of revenue
and profit therefore relies on management’s estimate
of the final outcome of each contract, which involves
the exercise of significant management judgement,
particularly in forecasting the costs to complete a
contract, in valuing contract variations, claims and
liquidated and ascertained damages and in assessing the
ability of the Group to deliver services according to the
agreed timetable.
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assessing the design and implementation of key
internal controls over the contract revenue and profit
recognition processes;

discussing with management the performance of all
contracts in progress during the year and challenging
the key estimates and assumptions adopted in the
forecast of contract revenue and contract costs,
including estimated costs to completion, the recognition
of variation orders, the adequacy of contingency
provisions and the assessment of potential liquidated
and ascertained damages for contracts which
were behind schedule, by obtaining and assessing
information in connection the assumptions adopted,
including contract agreements and sub-.contracts,
correspondence with customers regarding contract
variations and claims and by considering historical
outcomes for similar contracts and industry norms;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEMHE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter

We identified contract accounting estimates as a key
audit matter because the estimation of the total revenue
and total costs to complete contracts is inherently
subjective and requires significant management
judgement and estimation and because errors in the
forecast of contract revenue and contract costs could
result in a material variance in the amount of profit or loss
recognised from contracts to date and, therefore, in the
current period.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

obtaining a detailed breakdown of the total estimated
costs to completion for all contracts in progress during
the year and comparing, on a sample basis, actual
costs incurred at the reporting date and cost estimates
with agreements, certifications or correspondence with
subcontractors and suppliers and other documentation
referred to by management in its assessment of the
estimated costs to completion;

challenging the assumptions and critical judgements
made by management which impacted their estimations
of the liquidated and ascertained damages assessments
by comparing the key terms and conditions in the
assessments with contract agreements with customers
and by comparing the estimated contract completion
time with the Group’s updated progress report or
correspondence from customers;

comparing the percentage of contact revenue
recognised for all contracts in progress during the year
with certifications from the surveyors appointed by the
customers or payment applications from the in-house
surveyor;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEHE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRETSEE ()

BREEE M

conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to observe the
progress of individual contracts and discussing with
site personnel the status of each project and evaluating
whether the project progress was consistent with the
agreed timetable and the Group s financial accounting
records;

performing a retrospective review for contracts
completed during the current year by comparing the
final outcome of the contracts with previous estimates
made for those contracts to assess the reliability of the
management s forecasting process; and

inspecting a sample of contract agreements with
customers and subcontractors to identify key terms
and conditions, including contracting parties, the
contract period, contract sum, the scope of work, the
methodology for calculating liquidated and ascertained
damages, and evaluating whether these key terms and
conditions had been appropriately reflected in the total
estimated revenue and costs to complete in the forecast
of the outcome of the contract.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEMHE (&)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
viewin accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEHE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEMHE (&)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEHE (&)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Wing Han, Ivy.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ReBRmREMZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE T —tF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTFI7R)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RF
Note $'000 $'000
B EE F T
Revenue g 4 370,235 497,303
Direct costs BHERAX (225,325) (366,458)
Gross profit EX 144,910 130,845
Other revenue H b e 5 9,620 8,523
Administrative and other TR R EMEERS
operating expenses (26,469) (27,584)
Profit from operations g A 128,061 111,784
Finance costs RbE AR 6(a) (264) (287)
Profit before taxation BB AR R 6 127,797 111,497
Income tax g 7(a) (21,100) (19,422)
Profit and total comprehensive FREIREZH
income for the year PNt 106,697 92,075
Earnings per share BRER GBA)
(Hong Kong cents)
Basic and diluted EXR#E 10 12.9 11.2

The notes on pages 63 to 115 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in note 20(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

As at 31 March 2017 R=Z—+F=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7T 7R )

2017 2016
—E—+tFE —ZRE
Note $'000 $'000
BEE Fr T
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HERE 11 20,726 27,161
Finance lease receivables FEW R A ERIB 17(a) - 1,201
... 20726 28,362
Current assets REEE
Gross amounts due from BUREFAHTIR
customers for contract work FRIBHERE 15 50,613 75,514
Finance lease receivables JEU B & T E 5B 17(a) 1,201 2,929
Trade and other receivables B 5k HAEFIE 13 242,127 104,165
Cash and bank balances R& RIRTTERH 14(a) 96,127 229,592
.....390,068 412,200
Current liabilities REBEE
Gross amounts due to customers BREFPEHTIIE
for contract work FIB4RER 15 21,089 1,954
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAENFIR 16 49,291 71,055
Bank loan — secured RITEH - B IEMF 19 5,116 6,453
Loans from shareholders fEERE K 18 - 9,000
Obligations under finance leases LA R E A E 17(b) 1,201 2,929
Tax payable JERIIE 7(0)i) 5,353 13,985
.....82050 - 105,376
Net current assets nEBEEFE 308,018 306,824
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERREBEE 328,744 335,186

REZEZERERAT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
FEMBMRRRE (E)

Asat 31 March 2017 R=ZZE—+F=H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB L3R )

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZT—RF
Note $'000 $'000
B EE Fr Tt
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Obligations under finance leases BEEEAYE 17(b) - 1,201
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEARE 7(c)ii) 2,000 2,718
el 2000 3,919

NET ASSETS EEFE 326,744 331,267

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRGEE 20
Share capital &N 20(c) 8,300 8,300
Reserves i 318,444 322,967
TOTAL EQUITY RS 326,744 331,267

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HEZEEeN _ZT—tF A - +=HibE

on 23 June 2017 R RT3
Lau Pak Man Cheng Wing Cheong 2lax 13- =1
Director Director - 2

The notes on pages 63 to 115 form part of these financial 5 63% 115 BRI M BRIt S EHRERZ
statements. — &5 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+tF=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7T 7R )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ADRERRRER
Share Share Capital  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve profits equity
Be  ROEE  EXEE REERN aEs
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Wiz i 7 7 i 7
At 1 April 2015 R=B-ZEMA-A 6,400 98,162 (35,952) 80,171 148,781
Changes in equity for 2016: ZE-RERREE:
Profit and total comprehensive ERETIREEYREE
income for the year - - - 92,075 92,075
Dividend approved in respect RBEFEERRE
of the previous year 20(b)(i) - (24,900) - - (24,900)
Issuance of new shares under the BEERLREE
Initial Public Offering (“IPO"), (FERAFRE]) BT
net of issuing expenses MR AREORT 200 1,900 113,411 - - 115,311
At 31 March 2016 and RZB-R"E=A=+-H
1 April 2016 kR=E-REMmA-H 8,300 186,673 (35,952) 172,246 331,267
Changes in equity for 2017 ZE-LERREE:
Profit and total comprehensive ERETIREEYREE
income for the year - - - 106,697 106,697
Dividend approved in respect SBEFEEHANRE
of the previous year 20(b)(i) - (28,220) - - (28,220)
Dividend approved in respect REHNFECHANRE
of the current year 20(b)(ii) - (83,000) - - (83,000)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=A=1-H 8,300 75453 (35,952) 278,943 326,744
The notes on pages 63 to 115 form part of these financial £ 63% 115 B MM SHEA L S I ERE 2
statements. —Zf 5 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE T —tF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTFI7R)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
Note $'000 $'000
BsE T Fr

Cash generated from operations REMBRE 14(b) 17,926 119,856
Tax paid BEASFIE (30,450) (23,423)
Net cash (used in)/generated ESER (FTA), B8

from operating activities REFE ~(12,524) 96433
Investing activities REEH
Payment for the purchase of HEEWE BE

property, plant and equipment PETNEN (33) (29,415)
Interest received BEFE 815 670
Capital element of finance lease BlmERERSZ

rentals received BARTTE 2,929 2,826
Interest element of finance lease BlpERERS 2

rentals received FETTE 98 201
(Increase)/decrease in restricted SR B RITIFER

bank deposits (&), R (11,809) 22,722
Net cash used in RETBFTAESFE

investing activities (8000) ________ (2996)
Financing activities mMEEH
Net proceeds from issue of shares BTN P15 SR IB)F 58 - 115,311
Interest paid BEFE (166) (86)
Capital element of finance leases ENmMAHEERS 2

rentals paid BATLE (2,929) (2,826)
Interest element of finance leases BENpERERSZ

rentals paid SO (98) (201)
Repayment of loans from shareholders (B3R E (9,000) -
Dividends paid BB (111,220) (24,900)
Proceeds from new bank loan HERTERATSHIE - 7,000
Repayment of bank loan EBIRTTER (1,337) (547)
Net cash (used in)/generated MEES (FA) 8

from financing activities REFE (1247500 93,751
Net (decrease)/increase in RERRLEEY

cash and cash equivalents CRD),/EinFE (145,274) 187,188
Cash and cash equivalents at FINRER

the beginning of the year REZEY 182,293 (4,895)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRNRLR

the end of the year REZEY 14(a) 37,019 182,293

The notes on pages 63 to 115 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A T3 7R)

GENERAL INFORMATION

In Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged as a contractor in the
foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 September 2014
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 April 2015 (the “Listing”).

—REH

WRIERETERERAR(ARRAA])
MEWNBAR (GBI AER]) =
DIEAREBREBNEHmEE -
AKARR—_ZE—NFEALA=-+A1H
RERESBREEAPIENERRE
(1961 FE3FED - KERA KB
A ERERESFMKLAERS
BRAR] e

RARROR T —RFHA+R
HEBZPAEM (T LM -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BAEHBE
(a) Statement of compliance (a) &HREH

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R MY AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

()

statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2017 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how
the Group'’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented.

64}“/ In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns fromits
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(g)), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R MY AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

(f)

/ In Construction Holdings Limited

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(g)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

— Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Shorter of lease
term and 5 years

— Leasehold improvements

— Motor vehicles 3/, years
— Plant and machinery 5 years
— Office equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(f) Leased assets (continued)

(@

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost or valuation of the
assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset,
as set out in note 2(e). Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note
2(g). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R MY AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Leased assets (continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

(9)
(i)

In Construction Holdings Limited

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

Trade and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(@

Impairment of trade and other
receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B &M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

0]

(i)

In Construction Holdings Limited

Impairment of trade and other
receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors included within trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and
- investment in subsidiaries in the

Company's statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R MY AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

/ In Construction Holdings Limited

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction
of an asset or a group of assets, where the
customer is able to specify the major structural
elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 2(p)(i). When
the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised
as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the
reporting period. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,
the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Construction contracts in progress at the end
of the reporting period are recorded at the net
amount of costs incurred plus recognised profit
less recognised losses and progress billings,
and are presented in the statement of financial
position as the “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amounts due to customers for contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customer are included
under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
included under “Trade and other payables”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

()]

(k)

U]

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(g)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Except for financial guarantee
liabilities measured in accordance with note 2(o)
(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and in hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B &M EE (&)

. . (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities and all deferred tax
assets, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R MY AL (AR

76

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

/ In Construction Holdings Limited

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Group or the Company has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group or the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(o) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities

0]

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R MY AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

78

/

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2

SRR (48)

(o) Financial guarantees issued, (o) ERLHFBER BERR

provisions and contingent liabilities REE (&)

(continued)

(i) Financial guarantees issued (i) CRHIKERE)
(continued)
The amount of the guarantee initially 2 HER BRI AR
recognised as deferred income is amortised BRI BERFER
in profit or loss over the term of the BRAEHERE B
guarantee as income from financial BHREREVWA © BEo1
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions fist (i) FEARFT B A B AT 4%
are recognised in accordance with note RIBERAAEERED
2(o)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable B= . (i) mARE>ESH
that the holder of the guarantee will call RNRETA R IBIART
upon the Group under the guarantee, and B 5 Rk EH A FERT 5RIE
(i) the amount of that claim on the Group A E’]Bﬂ%ﬁ%&i(ﬁﬂ 1)
is expected to exceed the amount currently WML ) &R
carried in trade and other payables in By E‘Jﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount B 3E 2(0) (i) FERR o
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

(i) Other provisions and contingent (i) HaBERIREE

In Construction Holdings Limited

liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising

EAEBRAL TR
AE A TER S EER
HEEL  MEAZE
(LA S B8 BB A 2

as a result of a past event, it is probable SN A AT VEH AT S
that an outflow of economic benefits will S B SRR
be required to settle the obligation and YHEIEENEMEE
a reliable estimate can be made. Where SHIZ RS - (HE IR
the time value of money is material, BEEKX  BIEREEE
provisions are stated at the present value BRTEEEREH
of the expenditure expected to settle the S HIRESIER ©

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or

fid AR BT 2 H A
R - %*Hfﬁi% A

the amount cannot be estimated reliably, BER FEfAET - BIZBH TR
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent EHRETARABE
liability, unless the probability of outflow M A 1) 25 ) AT R

of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue from a fixed price contract work
is recognised based on the stage of
completion of the contracts, provided that
the stage of contract completion and the
gross billing value of contracting work
can be measured reliably. The stage of
completion of a contract is established
according to the progress certificate (by
reference to the amount of completed
works confirmed by surveyor) issued by
the customers or the progress payment
application (by reference to the amount of
completed works confirmed by in-house
surveyor) submitted to the customers.

Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included in contract
revenue to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer or the outcome
of which can be estimated reliably by
management and are capable of being
reliably measured.

When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable
will be recoverable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXETEEK (&)
(continued)

(r) Related parties (continued) () EEG (&)
(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of ) H—REBHFESTIME
the following conditions applies: EECSE E'J?%ﬁ‘ﬁféﬁiﬁ
S B
()  The entity and the Group are () ZEBERHEASH
members of the same group (which BRE—E£8MK
means that each parent, subsidiary IEUNGIQEIE=SSIN
and fellow subsidiary is related to the A EBAR R
others). EESINEPNCIRE
B ) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint (il —REBRS—
venture of the other entity (or BB E QR
an associate or joint venture of a HEEDRE(HS
member of a group of which the —EBAKER
other entity is a member). AIBEBEE T
BARMEE R
BSNAEEE) -
(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the (i) MREEHAR
same third party. —FBE=FWmAE
(=
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a (ivy —REBEBAE=
third entity and the other entity is an FEBNAEED
associate of the third entity. ¥ MmME—E8
BEZE=HER
)N
(vy  The entity is a post-employment v, EBAAEHSDK
benefit plan for the benefit of B 7K £ [E] 5 RE Bt
employees of either the Group or an WERMLESR
entity related to the Group. FIR W BER TR
FFH&l -
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly (i) EREZ(n()
controlled by a person identified in AT S KR
(n(1). P o
(vii) A person identified in (r)(1)(i) has (Vi) (r)(N(i) B aft A ==
significant influence over the %TE‘EE%@K%
entity or is a member of the key BHhIBZE F!='
management personnel of the entity (REEBBOE
(or of a parent of the entity). a)E %%filﬁﬂ
g o
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group (viiiy BEENERIEL
of which it is a part, provides key SEEMKER
management personnel services to AEG —Hom
the Group or to the Group’s parent. NE Ejz$‘i £
EORSH/NESIEAr e
ZEWABRRT ©
Close members of the family of a person are %%Aiﬁ’]%]ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%
those family members who may be expected to FHZERETISNARE
influence, or be influenced by, that person in FHEGETEZBATHER
their dealings with the entity. ZRANTHENRENE -

REZEZERERAT —T—LFFRH 81//



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES
(a) Critical accounting judgements in

applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies, management has made the
following accounting judgements:

(i) Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual value.
The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment
regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

8%/ In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in

applying the Group’s accounting

policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of trade receivables
The Group evaluates whether there is any
objective evidence that trade receivables
are impaired, and estimates allowances
for doubtful debts as a result of the
inability of the debtors to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates
on the ageing of the trade receivables
balance, credit-worthiness of the customer
and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be
higher than estimated.

Sources of estimation uncertainty
Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 2(h) and 2(p)
(i), revenue and profit recognition on an
uncompleted project is dependent on estimating
the total outcome of the construction contract,
as well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group's recent experience and the nature of the
construction activities undertaken by the Group,
the Group makes estimates of the point at which
it considers the work is sufficiently advanced such
that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is
reached the amounts due from customers for
contract work as disclosed in note 15 will not
include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work done to date. In addition,
actual outcomes in terms of total costs or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would
affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded
to date.

3 SEtHE R (&)

(a)

(b)

FERAEEzE T RERZ
EXSEHE (&)

(i) FEWE S FRRE
REEFE DA EMA
EEEBRERRKES
FIERE - BEETEE
5 A BEAE R E 5K
A £ ) RERBEHE - A
SERERKEZ KA
BRRERDT - &P
EV1E PR B 1 BH A B
TR AT © HERS AR
MBI - BERE
IR S MEET o

T TR ZERIR
BEEHY

AN R BT EE 2(h) B2 2(p)(i) BT
i WARTKIER KT R
mFEREURD Y RELSD
MEERN G RES B H#ETT
BT o RIBAEE/ A
R AEEETHRESE
HHMEE  AEEGTHER
ATREERN TR S
{5 T2 AR AR B IR 25 B9 B
F2h - AL EER AR
AT BUWEFAHNTIRER
H (1S IR EE ) 517 E
BREALEERRITBESE
BT ITRERANER - 11t
Sh o BB AR IRENE
BERT R ER SRS
HARMGE BeRERE
REEERBIESTARE R
HY AR M R R A M e B B o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 4 WakpIPER
INFORMATION
Revenue represents revenue from construction W BN FEARNTEREEEAS LI
contracts earned during the year. oo

2 EER
TERERREGRAREN

(a) Segment information (a)
The chief operating decision-maker regards the
Group's business as a single operating segment ERAE—(HE—KZEDE0
and reviews financial statements accordingly. IR E BB SRR o U
Also, the Group only engages its business in G REBIREELEH
BBt WEZ3|HH

Hong Kong. Therefore, no segment information

is presented.

(b) Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10%

B o

(b) BREFEFEFZEHR
RAEEBYETHK10% A

of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: TEEMERWENT
2017 2016
—B—tE C—T—REF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Customer A BEA - 148,788
Customer B ®FB - 55,689
Customer C BFEC - 50,088
Customer D ®FED 148,694 -
Customer E BFE 69,960 -
Customer F EFF 50,830 -
OTHER REVENUE 5 Hiblh =
2017 2016
—B—tFE —T—RE
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Bank interest income RITHBUA 815 670
Interest income from finance FEW B E R E IR
lease receivables 2 R BHA 98 201
Sales of scrap materials SHERER 690 1,458
Rental income from machinery etz A 7,000 6,000
Others Hh 1,017 194
9,620 8,523
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

6 BRELADEA
BBATHFIENBRIA T & -

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

2017 2016
—E2—tE —TREF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
(a) Finance costs AE R A
Interest on bank overdrafts BITEZAE - 8
Interest on bank loan RITERFE 166 78
Finance charges on obligations ~ BEFME&IEZGE
under finance leases &R 98 201
264 287
(b)  Staff costs (including BIREK(EHE
directors’ remuneration) EEHM)
Contributions to defined FE HFGRIRET B LR
contribution retirement plans 762 843
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥ & « T& Kk HAta 7| 26,124 24,032
26,886 24,875
Add: Amount included in A AT ATERRESD
construction contracts oGl
in progress 10,225 1,696
37,111 26,571
(c) Otheritems Hitg g
Depreciation e 6,468 5,043
Operating lease charges: KEHEER  HERQE
minimum lease payments 2 RAREE R
in respect of leasing of office 871 737
Listing expenses (including EWHAX (BETES
auditors’ remuneration B2 EM RIS 2
for other services separately ZHEH 2
disclosed below) - 4,503
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREM BN &
— audit services —ZH R 1,000 1,050
— other services (note) — H A AR (FI5E) 380 532
Note: A non-audit service fee payable to the auditor of $38,000 in M3t MARRBRORBE T —RF

relation to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 March

2016 had been net-off against the share premium account upon

the Listing.

ZAZt+-BLEFERBRME
AR = T T R A A R Y FE A R
5% 38,000 TER LR ERD
RERRAHIER o

85
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

7 INCOME TAX

Frig i

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement () HZEeBEZERHEMEZEKRER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive W FREBiE
income represents:
2017 2016
—E—+tF T F
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Current tax A HARI I8
Provision for Hong Kong RELBBAEHEE
Profits Tax for the year 21,916 16,694
(Over)/under-provision BEFE GRERE),/
in respect of prior years BETE (98) 10
LLass 16,704
Deferred tax EEBE
Origination and reversal of Ly Z T E & RO
temporary difference (718) 2,718
21,100 19,422
Notes: BEE -

(i)

In Construction Holdings Limited

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"”), the Group
is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is
calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, taking into account a
reduction of 75% of the tax payable for the year of
assessment 2016-17 subject to a maximum reduction
of $20,000 granted by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Government”)
for each business (2016: a reduction of 75% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2015-16 subject to a

maximum reduction of $20,000).

Annual Report 2017

(i)

(i)

REFSEHERABEREHS ([HE
BLZEE]DHRAEBR  RERH
EHMRENBREBRELSNE
[BEE

ZE-FEBNEREBEDREF
AT ERBUEF - 5T KRB BRRIIT
BREBRR(BAD)REEBER=F
—REZT - ERRFENEMNT
TR % 75% (£ %F % 20,000 7T ) 14 -
#16.5% (ZF— "% 16.5%) 5t 8
(ZZ—RF: REEBR=_T—1Z
ZE-AFRBFENEMABIER S
75% (&% % 20,0007T) * REtE =
TNEERERDERENR)



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

(b)

(c)

7 INCOME TAX (continued) 7 FRS® (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expense (b) BERABRIFTENFESHEN
and accounting profit before taxation at THRBRBRAGTRFNER
applicable tax rate: mE
2017 2016
—E—tF T F
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Profit before taxation FR A5 AT A 127,797 111,497
Notional tax on profit before BRE AR AR 2 EFIE
taxation, calculated at the (RBBFIFHE
Hong Kong Profits Tax & 16.5%:18)
rate of 16.5% 21,087 18,397
Tax effect of non-deductible PRI HIRR S M 7%
expenses % 154 1,012
Tax effect of non-taxable income ANAJFO% U A HOT: 75 57 28 (3) )
Tax effect of deductible RIER A M T R 28
temporary differences BB E
not recognised - 5
Statutory tax concession EEBIBESR (40) -
(Over)/under provision in BEFE GRERE),/
prior years BETR (98) 10
Actual income tax expense EBREHAS 21,100 19,422
Income tax in the consolidated statement of () HREUBMRRPFAE
financial position represents: Fiig
2017 2016
—E—tF ZZXF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
(i)  Current taxation B IE
Provision for Hong Kong ~ FREEFEH
Profits Tax for the year B 21,916 16,694
Provisional Profits Tax paid B} & #F|55 (16,589) (16,754)
5,327 (60)
Balance of Hong Kong BRABRTFEREN
Profits Tax payable EEMEST AR
relating to prior years 26 14,045
Tax payable FERITIE 5,353 13,985

REZFERBRAT —T-tFFR
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7 INCOME TAX (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

7 FRIE®L (&)

() Income tax in the consolidated statement of () HEMBRARDFE
financial position represents: (continued) s (&)
(i) Deferred tax liabilities in the statement (i) HMBERARAVELES
of financial position represents: BHEEIE
The components of deferred tax liabilities R B AR R R AR /Y
recognised in the statement of financial RIET IR B EEKE S
position and the movements during the RENSHIT
year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of related
depreciation
AR ITE
ZERBIE
$'000
FT
Deferred tax arising from: PEAERH BRI IR -
At 1 April 2015 RZTE—AFMA—H -
Charged to profit or loss B AR 2,718
At 31 March 2016 and RZT—RF=ZA=+—H
1 April 2016 r=—ZT—RFMA—H 2,718
Credited to profit or loss FFABZEER (718)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F=ZA=+—H 2,000
(d) There were no material unrecognised deferred d) REB—tER-ZZF—XE

tax assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2017

and 2016.

In Construction Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8 EEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section REEB R AHEHIE 3831 IE A
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and AI(BEBEFENER ZKE) RO
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information FLEMBEBR I ESHAT ¢

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2017
HE-Z-tF=B=t-ALEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind Bonuses contributions Total
#é 28
EEHe  RENARZ A RAGTEIR o
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
i i i r i
Executive directors HiTER
Mr. Lau Pak Man Aastes - 1,200 - 18 1,218
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong HRERHE - 1,200 - 18 1,218
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit B0 T (P i) - 1,080 - 18 1,098
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors
Mr. Leung ChiKin REBELE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis WEERE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFERE
(also known as lao Chi Meng) 150 - - - 150
Total feh 450 3,480 - 54 3,984

REREERARAT —T—tE%% . 89
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION 8

(continued)

E5HM A)

Year ended 31 March 2016

BE-F-RE-A-T-HIEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees in kind Bonuses  contributions Total
E A=
B3 REWAER AL BRI @
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i Fi Fr i
Executive directors YES
Mr. Lau Pak Man El=hrgied - 1,200 - 18 1,218
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong BERERE - 1,200 - 18 1,218
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit BRLZT - 1,080 - 18 1,098
Independent non-executive BYBTES
directors
Mr. Leung Chi Kin RRBLE 144 - - - 144
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MEHRE 144 - - - 144
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEEAE
(also known as lao Chi Meng) 144 - - - 144
Total @t 432 3,480 - 54 3,966
Notes: BifeE
0} No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during (0} BEEENHE-_ZT—LtFR-F
the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016. —ANEZA=T—RAILFEREXR
BRETTH -
(ii) The Company did not have any share option scheme for the
purchase of ordinary shares in the Company during the years (ii)

ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

9?/ In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R)

9 EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST 9 IfuUGSHFMALIRESR

PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR EEE 2 &
MANAGEMENT
(@) Emoluments of five highest paid (a) FUESHMALZHMH
individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group RERASEE R &= B
during the year include three (2016: three) AT B FEEFTA I FE 8 i
directors whose emoluments are disclosed EN=—RmEg=5 (T —RF:
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments =%)  BEEEBA LT ZFHM
in respect of the remaining individuals are as REEMT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Salaries, allowances and e EUMREYHE
benefits in kind 1,320 1,405
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAT 605 250
Retirement scheme contributions RREFEIHE R 34 36
1,959 1,691
The emoluments of the above individuals are it ATHENB A T EE

within the following bands:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AH

Nil to $1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 1 2

$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001 7t £ 2,000,000 7T 1 -

(b) Emoluments of senior management (b) EREEENME
Other than the emoluments of the directors and MEIFE8 M o(a) FTINEEME S
five highest paid individuals disclosed in notes 8 RAfusaHmMA Lz Me
and 9(a), the emoluments of the remaining senior S BTEMEEEMNIS
management fell within the following band: BT &
2017 2016

—E—tHF —ZT—RF
Number of Number of

individuals individuals
AE AH
Nil to $1,000,000 Z£ % 1,000,000 7T 1 -

REZEZERERAT —T—LFFRH 91‘/



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB T3 7R )

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 SREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share BRERBIIZA RN A#ER
is based on the profit attributable to equity % 5 FE 14 7 106,697,000
shareholders of the Company of $106,697,000 JTT(ZZF—7"4F : 92,075,000
(2016: $92,075,000) and the weighted average 7T) R B EITIR M & NiE T
of 830,000,000 shares in issue (2016: weighted 27830,000,000 & (=Z—7<
average of 821,065,574 shares in issue after FREEWEITHRG AT
adjusting for the issuance of new shares under ERBRBE ZEITRMAME
the Listing (see note 20(c))). F198r821,065,574 % (BT

FF20(c)) ) FTE °

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SREBEBEER
There were no diluted potential shares in REBEE_ZTE—EFRZF
existence during the years ended 31 March 2017 —NF=ZA=+—8B1t#F
and 2016. E - BEAEEERD -

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 #% -~ BEXR&®E

Plantand  Leasehold Furniture Motor Office
machinery improvements  and fixtures vehicles  equipment Total
BERKE HENEEE  HARRE RE BAERE &t
$'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
i S S i T i
Cost: A
At 1 April 2015 RZE-R4MA-A 1,062 643 573 1,194 1,570 5,042
Additions hE 31,203 352 84 - 127 31,766
At 31 March 2016 RZF-7FZA=t-B 3_2,_2§§ ________ 9 ?5____6?7____1_194____1697___3680_8
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~ERA-H 32,265 995 657 1,194 1,697 36,808
Additions HE - - - - 3 3
At31 March 2017 WE-HFZA=t-B 3_2,_2_65_ ________ 9 ?5____6?7____1_194____1730___368{1
Accumulated depreciation: 23t :
At 1 April 2015 R=E-1%NA-A 902 643 556 1,041 1,462 4,604
Charge for the year EfER 4,759 70 2 133 59 5,043
At31 March 2016 RZF-7FZA=t-B ! 5 ,_6_61_ ________ 7 13_________528_______},_1?4_______],?2_1 _______ 96{7
At 1 April 2016 RZE-ERA-A 5,661 713 518 1,174 1,521 9,647
Charge for the year FRFER 6,290 n 2 20 66 6,468
At31 March 2017 WF-tFZA=t-B W_W,_9_51_ ________ 7 §4____5?9____1_194____1587___1611_5
Net book value: BRERE:
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tF=A=1-H 20,314 M 58 - 143 20,726
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~E=A=1-H 26,604 282 79 20 176 27,161
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (MAZ TR )

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 #1% - BEKHfE (&)

(continued)
(a) Certain machinery were pledged to secure a bank (a) ETHBEERERRTE
loan, details of which are set out in note 19. RHER - BREFIEENM
FE190
(b) Assets leased out under operating (b) REKEAEHENEE
leases
The group leases out certain machinery under AEBRBLEEHEL RS
operating leases. The leases run for a period of Ties - MOFHA—F
one year and do not include contingent rentals. WABESREE °
Total future minimum lease payments under R 3R AT EUB 4¢ & 0 & i FE
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable I 89 R 2R B AR AE & R A ER
as follows: mr
2017 2016
—E—tF ZZ—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr FIr
Within 1 year —FR 2,000 3,000
12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 RMIBARZRE
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries TREBEAEEWMB AT ZFFS
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless BRIESBHRA - FrsROENRE
otherwise stated. Ak e
Proportion of ownership interest
fEREELH
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business paid-up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activity
A EEE |
PGS EESL RRARE  AEEEDER fif  KROAKE  IBER
In Construction (BVI) Limited BVI 1 share of US§1 100% 100% - Investment holding
REEREE  1RIELIRR BB
In Construction Limited Hong Kong 9,300,000 shares 100% - 100%  Construction and engineering
REREERAR & 9300000R%N BETR

REZEZERERAT —T—LFFRH 9?



Notes to the Financial Statements
oy F e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THII7R)

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 EZRHEMEBWFIE
2017 2016
—E2—tFE TR EF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Trade debtors EURE SR 156,427 36,158
Deposits, prepayments and Ze - TR REMER
other receivables (note (i) I (MHEE () 20,106 18,289
Retentions receivable (note (ii)) FEUHREE & (PH3E (i) 65,594 49,718
242,127 104,165
Notes: BEE -
(i) Except for an amount of $20,000 (2016: $13,508,000) as at 31 (i) BRR-_T—t+tF=ZA=+—H&#H
March 2017, which is expected to be recovered or recognised 20,0007C( =& — 7<% : 13,508,000
as expense after one year, all of the remaining balances of the 70 ) TEERRA — F 1 W el sk g R A R 2
Group are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense N REEFTESRETER —F R
within one year. Bl ER AR ©
(i) Except for an amount of $20,786,000 (2016: $28,402,000) as (i) BR-_Z—+tF=ZA=+—H%
at 31 March 2017, which is expected to be recovered after one %820,786,0007T( = T — X 4F:
year, all of the remaining balances are expected to be recovered 28,402,000 7T) TEHA —F &Y B 5] -
within one year. FIBESHEESER—FRkE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 EZKHMEWTIE (&)

(continued)

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERDW
Included in trade and other receivables are ATAE S MEMERGIERN
trade debtors, based on the invoice date (net of BREWEER - RIREHRIL
allowance for doubtful debts) with the following FEHH (B RERE) R
ageing analysis at the end of the reporting B OMTEOR -
period:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Within 1 month —(EAR 81,670 33,538
2 months to 3 months MEAZ=1EA 16,500 -
Over 3 months =EANUE 58,257 2,620
156,427 36,158
Trade debtors are normally due within 14-30 EWE SEZBEEREEA
days from the date of billing. Further details HIRR14Z= 30 B NEIHE - B
on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note REFBEZEREZE—
21(a). TBEERHITE21(a) ©
(b) Impairment of trade debtors (b) FEWERFURE

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see
note 2(g)(i)).

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, none of the
Group’s trade debtors were considered to be
impaired.

ERRKERNBEBES
RAEEERAR  KRIEREEH
EM Bl EARAEE £
IEAT  BEEEEES
FE UK B 5 BR sl ( BT R
2(9)() °

NoE—LER-F—AF
SA=T-8 BESEH
RN SRR AR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THII7R)

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 Hfh U R IE (48)

(continued)

(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired 7 7 (B PE W BR X
Receivables which were neither past due nor B 4 460 5 O A U (B A0 B UK
impaired related to a range of customers for HEEFTETHENOES D
whom there was no recent history of default. EEHES -

Receivables which were past due but not 18 HA {8 4R (B A9 JIE R R 0E B
impaired related to a number of independent ETHEASEHEERITHA
customers that have a good track record with the AEMEEPHEE AR
Group. Based on past experience, management BEER EEEREES
believes that no impairment allowance is MRS E BT IRBERE -
necessary in respect of these balances as there RRAEEEZWEERE
has not been significant change in credit quality B N R EE T 7,%1}371%(1451
and the balances are still considered fully [E] o
recoverable.
14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 14 BERIBITHEER
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise: ReRBITHEBESRE
2017 2016
—E—tE T F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 37,019 182,293
Deposits with banks RITIFR 59,108 47,299
Cash and bank balances in the  #ZRAMEHRATZH RS
consolidated statement of RARTTAEER
financial position 96,127 229,592
Less: Restricted bank W ZRGIRITAEH
balances (note) (BF3E) (59,108) (47,299)
Cash and cash equivalents in GeReRERTRE
the consolidated cash flow RE&EED
statements 37,019 182,293
Note: Restricted bank balances are deposits placed in banks to MisE :  RBGIRITAERIBFRIERT

secure the issuance of performance bonds (see note 23)

and banking facilities.
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B R R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (MAZ TR )

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 14 RERkiRI1THESR(E)
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before (b) BRFIANEFIHEKGEFRBES
taxation to cash generated from ZH R
operations:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZERE
Note $'000 $'000
Bitsx Fr T
Operating activities REED
Profit before taxation BRI AT A 127,797 111,497
Adjustments for: STHRIATE
Bank interest income RITRSHA 5 (815) (670)
Interest income from finance ERmERERSHA
lease receivables 5 (98) (201)
Finance costs AR 6(a) 264 287
Depreciation nE 6(c) 6,468 5,043
Changes in working capital: EEEARET
(Increase)/decrease in trade E 5 REMERFE
and other receivables (&m),/mb (137,962) 5,435
Decrease in gross amounts due ElREPENTIEHE
from customers for BERL
contract work 24,901 24,614
Decrease in trade and B 5 RAMENFIE
other payables B (21,764) (27,928)
Increase in gross amounts EREPEHNTIENE
due to customers B
for contract work 19,135 1,779
Cash generated from REmBRe
operations 17,926 119,856

REZEZERERAT
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15 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 15 EW ERNEF&EHXNIRE

CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK I EE
2017 2016
—B—+tF —TRF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Gross amounts due from customers EWEFSHNIRRELLEE
for contract work
Contract costs incurred plus recognised B EA£A LKA INE #ER
profits less recognised losses AR B AR E 1R 625,711 808,839
Less: Progress billings received R B FEMGE [ FE
and receivable (575,098) (733,325)
50,613 75,514
Gross amounts due to customers EREFEHIRREAE
for contract work
Progress billings received and receivable B W% fEWHE [E 5118 581,566 51,610
Less: Contract costs incurred plus W BEEANKAINE #R
recognised profits less w AR B REE
recognised losses (560,477) (49,656)
21,089 1,954
All gross amounts due from/to customers for contract FiARK ENEFPAHTIRHNE
work are expected to be recovered/settled within one BETEHI AT —F AR E4EE o
year.
16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 16 B5REMENKE
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Trade creditors FERTERIK 42,358 66,966
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIE R IERT &R 6,715 3,413
Amounts due to shareholders (note) FERT AR B R IE (B EE) 218 676
49,291 71,055
Note: The amounts due to shareholders at 31 March 2017 and fax: RZFT—+tFR-_T—XNE=A
2016 were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of =+—8 - BREFEAEIKT
repayment. B R EEEERES -
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16

17

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 16 EZNKHEMENFIE(E)
(continued)
Included in trade and other payables are trade FAE S REMENRIESN ARER
creditors, based on invoice date, with the following R RREHRREZEHE
ageing analysis at the end of the reporting period: BTN ¢
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt
Within 1 month —(EAR 25,150 34,359
1 to 2 months —=W{EA 10,872 16,318
2 to 3 months Rz =1{E A 3,280 7,818
Over 3 months ={EANUE 3,056 8,471
42,358 66,966
FINANCE LEASES 17 ®EHRE
(a) Finance lease receivables (a) EWmEREHEENE
At 31 March 2017, the Group had finance lease R-_ZE—+FE=H=+—
receivables as follows B AN&EBEEEWTEYR
EMERIAE
2017 2016
“E-t% —ERE
Present value of Present value of
the minimum  Total minimum the minimum ~ Total minimum
lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
BEAE BERE RERE RERE
BESTE BEEE fFRME e
$000 $000 $'000 $'000
r i S S
Within 1 year & 1_,2_0_1 _________ 1_,2_1_5 _________ 2_,9_2_9 _________ 3_,(}2_7_ i
After 1 year but within 2 years —Ff  BRFER - - 1,201 1,215
o 1_,2_0_1 _________ 1_,2_ 1_5 _________ 1_ 2 0_1 _________ 1_ 2_ 1_5_ )
1,201 1,215 4,130 4,242
Less: total uneared finance income J5i : ARIBERALE (14) (112)
Present value of lease receivables  [EWFEEFRZHE 1,201 4130
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17 FINANCE LEASES (continued) 17 ®EHE(E)
(b) Obligations under finance leases (b) BEHERE
At 31 March 2017, the Group had obligations RZE—+tF=ZA=+—
under finance leases repayable as follows: H AEEHEBNTENF
AMREFIE A
2017 2016
“E-tfF ZE5F
Present value of Present value of

the minimum  Total minimum ~ the minimum ~ Total minimum
lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
SERE REAE SEHE SERE
AHRE DB NHRE [as

§'000 §'000 $'000 $000
i T Fr Fr
Within 1 year 0 1_,2_0_1 _________ 1_,2_1_5 _________ 2_,9_2_9 _________ 3_,(}2_7_ i
After 1 year but within 2years ~ —%#% + BRRER - - 1,201 1,215
o 1_,2_0_1 _________ 1_,2_ 1_5 _________ 1_ 2_0_1 _________ 1_2_1_5_ i
1,201 4,130 4,242
Less: total future interest expenses 5 : BAFISEEE (14) (112)
Present value of lease obligations ~ EAZZB(E 1,201 4130
18 LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS 18 BREER
The loans from shareholders were unsecured, interest- RRERAEER - F:tE - AR
free and have been repaid during the year. FHNEEE-
19 BANK LOAN - SECURED 19 RITER-SIKHE
The bank loan was repayable as follows: RITEREEZEDT -
2017 2016
—=—+tF —T—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Within 1 year or on demand RN—FRsIZBER 5,116 6,453
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19 BANK LOAN — SECURED (continued) 19 RITER-SER (E)

At 31 March 2017, the bank loan was secured by
two sets of machinery with an aggregate net book
value of $5,230,000 (2016: $6,834,000), interest-
bearing at 1-month Hong Kong Inter Bank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 2.5% per annum (2016: 1-month
HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum), and repayable by
monthly instalments till 23 October 2020. The bank
loan agreement contains clauses which give the bank
the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time irrespective of whether the
group has complied with the covenants and met the
scheduled repayment obligations.

At 31 March 2017, revolving term loan facilities
amounted to $10,000,000 (2016: $10,000,000) was in
place. None of the facilities were utilised as at 31 March
2017 (2016: $Nil).

All of the Company’s banking facilities are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group's balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 21(b).

R-ZT—+E=A=+—8 R17
B ARMmAE 45,230,000 (=
T — X4 1 6,834,00070) U E 1
BEEM  H—EAFTBRITAZE
FE([HBRITAZERE ) MEFF
25% (ZF—RF: —[@AABEHR
TREREMEF25%):E I
BEANHEEEE T -_TE+A
T+ =B - RETEXWBEHEET
SRITEMPNEAREIEE 2 REEIE
DREFEE  MIRAEERE
BURHEMBITIEIERET -

R-ZT—+F=ZA=+—08 ER
FHEZFE 510,000,000t (=
Z — 754 110,000,000 ) © R =
T—+HEZA=Z+—A " TEHH
RITRME(ZT—RF &) o

ARRFAERITREAFERAS
BETEERMBLL R 2 WHEEEK
BAAFE  ZFRHEFEINEY
BB L2 BT - WAK
BiE k2w CRBRZBEREAER
EXREE AEEERERERES
BTZELH BEASEEEE
MEE 2R A — SR BN
FE21(b) °
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20 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 20 BEXRKf#E
(a) Movement in components of equity (a) REZARIBD 2EE
The reconciliation between the opening and AEEGEERSEKLD

EAHH%D&HHX%%%EE%%%
EREEHEK - AN
,HH%H&EH5E21/\H£Z!S%EEZ

closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

102

Details of the Company’s individual components B2 FHBEHN T
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the period are set out below:
The Company
LA
(Accumulated
[oss)
Share Share Jretained
capital premium profit Total
(gHE8)/
A RIVEE REER @t
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2015 R-E-EEMA-AZEHR 6,400 98,162 (11,668) 92,894
Issuance of new shares under the $EB§E/MB§§*E ([ERAR
Initial Public Offering (*IPO"), &) BITHRA - Mk
net of issuing expenses (note 20(c)) ?"ﬂ A% (HiEF20() 1,900 113,411 - 115,311
Dividend approved in respect of FREFEEHENRE
the previous year (note 20(b)(i) (Fi5E 20(b)0) - (24,900) - (24,900)
Loss and total comprehensive ERERREZARAEE
income for the year - - (4,219) (4,219)
Balance at 31 March 2016 RZB-AEZA=+-R
&8 8,300 186,673 (15,887) 179,086
Balance at 1 April 2016 RoE-AEMA-Az&H 8,300 186,673 (15,887) 179,086
Dividend approved in respect of HRTEREHENRE
the previous year (note 20(b)(i)) (BissE 20(0)i)) - (28,220 - (28,220
Dividend approved in respect of the SREFEEHANRE
previous year (note 20(o)(i) (B3 2000)i)) - (83,000) - (83,000)
Profit and total comprehensive ERETRZARAEE
income for the year - - 83,808 83,808
Balance at 31 March 2017 R=B-tE=A=1-A
&8 8,300 75453 67,921 151,674
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (MAZ TR )

(b) Dividends

20 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 20 EXKfFHE (E)
(b) EE
() Dividend payable to equity shareholders of )y HERNBEYHRFER
the Company attributable to the previous RAFEHOAE RIRH
financial year, approved and paid during J'EHZK AR A
the year: B2
2017 2016
—B—+tHF —TRF
$'000 $'000
Fr FIT
Final dividend in respect REFZIE LR B RRRT
of the previous financial WMIRFE 2 RERR S
year, approved and paid BT mAR3.41L
during the year of 3.4 (ZZ—RF 31l
cents (2016: 3 cents)
per ordinary share 28,220 24,900

(ii)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders

(i) FRERANFERAENAR

of the Company attributable for the year NAIERERE AR S
2017 2016
—E—tF ZZXF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Interim dividend declared &k &R 2 HIRR B
and paid of 10 cents G mAZ 1010
(2016: Nil) per (ZZT—RF )
ordinary share 83,000 -
Final dividend proposed PR E R E B R HIRR B
after the end of the FREmAR 101l
reporting period of 10 (ZZ—"%F : 3.410)
cents (2016: 3.4 cents)
per ordinary share 83,000 28,220
166,000 28,220
The final dividend proposed after the n i&iﬁﬂi?éﬁ})f&ZEE%ﬁHx
end of the reporting period has not been B RHERRT&E®ER

recognised as a liability at the end of the

reporting period.

BE-
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20 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 BANf#EE ()

(c) Share capital () B=X
The Company
R
2017 2016
ZE-tE Fi
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
6] k] O Ea
§'000 $'000
i T
Authorised - ordinary shares EE-SRO0MTZEER -
of $0.01 each:
At 1 April and 31 March REA-BR=A=+—H  2,000,000,000 20,000 2,000,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: L& CEIRAR:
At 1 April REA-A 830,000,000 8,300 640,000,000 6,400
Issuance of new shares under the BRERDERERT
IPO (note) SR (3T) - - 190,000,000 1,900
At 31 March RZA=1-H 830,000,000 8,300 830,000,000 8,300

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Notes: On 16 April 2015, the Company was successfully listed
on the Stock Exchange following the completion of its
IPO of 160,000,000 shares of $0.01 each issued at a
price of $0.66 per share. On 30 April 2015, upon the
exercise of the over-allotment option, the Company
allotted and issued 30,000,000 shares of $0.01 each
at a price of $0.66 per share. Proceeds of $1,900,000,
representing the par value of the shares issued were
credited to the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of $113,411,000, after deducting issuing
expenses of $10,089,000, were credited to the share
premium account.
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20 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 20 BARKf#E (&)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) RENEEREN
(i) Share premium (i) RDHE

(e)

The share premium account is governed by
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and may be applied by the Company
subject to the provisions, if any, of its
memorandum and articles of association in
paying distributions or dividends to equity
shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
the equity shareholders out of the share
premium account unless immediately
following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course

B EREFSES
RNAPERE - AAFR
) 4 28 AR 3R 32 A5 9 Ik 3K
P BB AT AR R AL AH AR
EEYNDEEUIC
(%) B BB EE
B o

BRIFEBEZE ST DK
HAEE B RARAR
AR BB R A
HWER - BRI
FARAD 58 (B AR A R A
PRRZ DRSS

of business.
(i) Capital reserve (i) ERFE
The capital reserve was created as a result MR EHEBEBARRT

of the reorganisation to rationalise the
Group structure in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of
the Company's reserves available for distribution
to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and the Company's
memorandum and articles of association, was
$143,374,000 (2016: $170,786,000). After
the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend of 10 cents per
ordinary share (2016: 3.4 cents), amounting to
$83,000,000 (2016: $28,220,000) (note 20(b)
(i). This dividend has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

(e)

B TR B 3P LT A
BEARKBARRE - MR
B

HETDIREE
R—_EBE—+tF=ZA=+—
B AQRA#HS K TFAR
AEmRENREERER
BEREHERREURER
B AR A E R K40 M A A ET
H ) /143,374,000t ( = &
— N4 1 170,786,000 7T) ° A
WEKRE ESEZRN
SRETAEBRI0OW(ZZE—X
Fr34)MKREBBRE =
83,000,000 T (=& — /X :
28,220,0007T) (FF5E20(b)(i))
c BB ERBEHRMEK
BRAEBAE -
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20 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(f) Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to fund
its construction business, provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Government requires contractors on the
list of approved contractors for public works
(the “List”) to maintain such minimum working
capital as the Government may from time to time
determine (the “Required Minimum Working
Capital”). A subsidiary of the Company is subject
to the Required Minimum Working Capital as the
subsidiary is a contractor on the List. Except for
this, neither the Company nor of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
bank deposits and trade and other receivables.
The Group has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
sound credit ratings and the Group has exposure
limit to any single financial institution. Given
their high credit ratings, management does not
expect any of these financial institutions and
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed as
part of the acceptance procedures for new
construction contracts. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 14-30 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has significant concentration of credit risk in a
few customers. In view of their credit standing,
good payment record and long established
relationships with the Group, management
does not consider the Group's credit risk to be
significant. At 31 March 2017, 17% (2016: Nil)
and 87% (2016: 3%) of the total trade debtors
was due from the Group's largest customer and
the Group's five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 13.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover the
expected cash demands. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed
funding lines from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

21 BBEAREEREMIA

M2 E (R)
(@) EHEmE(H)

(b)

B 5 NH A E YR IE
5 AKBESETENGEE
HIZIERFTTERADEME
Fr—8bom o I EFREFR
EPBAEXMIHMRENT
BRBERONREN LE
BEEFPHBEEMLERPK
ERRERLBRRENER - &
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THE=+tHRIH - A&
B — R g R E P WA

o
oA °
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REFBEEAEESTRRK -
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HERTHEREARAERE
BYRBBAER TEERAE
AEBAXZNEFEERRT
BEK - R_ZE—+F=FH
—+—H8 FBRERETEH
PR7% (ZE—XRF : |)
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ZE—HEERBERNHE
13-

REE SRR

AEEETHERHER R
HEBHEMWREEERA
BEESSEFEHERRES
TR ARBEZBEEED
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
Given the amounts due to shareholders and loans
from shareholders at 31 March 2017 and 2016
had no fixed repayment terms (see note 16 and
19), it is not practical to disclose their remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period. Except for these, the following table
details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the
Group'’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

Notes to the Financial Statements

21 BBEREEREMTA

M2 FE (&)
(b) FBESER (H)

NEZR=+—HBHEN
% B FIE MR R E R & E
A (AMIE16%19) -
RFERHRBEFERSHRTA
HENHABRIER - Bt
SN s TREFLAEES
BERBREHRNBTAY
BIHRR - DERAHERITE
REm(BEFERE O =R
ENFMEMNK . MAEZE
BIERRE B RA BT EF R )
MRS E R BREEN R
FHEE:

At 31 March 2017

R=Z2-t§=h=+-H
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount  cash flow ondemand 2 years 5 years

aankyR  -FRdl BB-F£ mENE

RAEE RBeR RER BIRWME EOREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i Tr Fr T i
Bank loan - secured, subject  $ITEFR-ZER
torepayment in demand  HERERETIELT -
clauses, scheduled RRFFEN
repayments 5,116 5,383 1,502 1,502 2,379
Trade creditors FERER 42,358 42,358 42,358 - -
Obligations under finance ~ BEMEAHE
leases 1,201 1,215 1,215 - -
48,675 48,956 45,075 1,502 2,379
Adjustments to disclose cash  {FHFBEUHEABRT
flows on bank loan BERNEERE
- secured based on lender's  —BEEREXERN
right to demand BN ER
repayment - (267) 3,614 (1,502) (2,379)
48,675 48,689 48,689 - -

']OE/. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2017
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 21 B#EREERERIA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL M AF{E (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBELER (H)

At 31 March 2016
RZEZ-"E=A=1—H

Total Morethan ~ More than

contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but

Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years

BANAITE —ER, BA-F ML
FEE RER BE% ESRRE  ELREE

$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
i i i i i
Bank loan - secured, subject  SRITEF-EEA
torepayment in demand  MERERETIELT
clauses, scheduled RETRER
repayments 6,453 6,886 1,502 1,502 3,882
Trade creditors FERTHRRR 66,966 66,966 66,966 - -
Obligations under finance ~ BRATR S}
leases 4,130 4,242 3,027 1,215 -
77,549 78,094 71,495 2,717 3,882
Adjustments to disclose cash  FH MK ERHET
flows on bank loan BENReRE
- secured based on lender's  —IBEE R ZREHH
right to demand ENRER
repayment - (433) 4,951 (1,502) (3,882)
77,549 77,661 76,446 1,215 -
(c) Interest rate risk (0 Fi=mEp
At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group did not RZE—tEFRZT—XRF
hold any assets and liabilities which are exposed —A=4+—8 AEEYE
to significant interest risk. BEAEITAEBEEATNZRR
WEEKEIE -

REZEZERERAT —T—LFFRH 103/
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 21 Bi¥ERRBREERESHTIA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL HAFE (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (d) SMERE
The Group’s functional currency is Hong Kong AEEMNNEEKSEBTT -
dollars. At 31 March 2017, the Group's currency RZFE—+tF=A=+—
risk is primarily attributable to deposits with H AEENEEREREE
banks of $21,935,000 (2016: $22,612,000) SERUAARE(TARE])
denominated in the Renminbi (“RMB"). HI1E &) $R 17 77 21,935,000
Assuming that the RMB had strengthened/ T(ZE— /\i 22,612,000
weakened by 5% at 31 March 2017 and the J0) ° R’& —tF=A
changes had been applied to the Group's =+— E/\Eﬁ%ﬂ'ﬁ/%ﬁ
exposure to currency risk for those deposits at 5% BZSEBENZBER
that date, with other variables held constant, the RAKEZEFRAERS
Group's profit after tax and total equity would BERR  mEMEEREF
increase/decrease by approximately $916,000 N AR ERBRTLE R
(2016: $944,000). ) X2 188 o 4R RE S 45 00,
#9916,0007L (= F — N4 :
944,0007T) °
The exposure to currency risk as referred to X EERRIEEIRE
above represents management’s assessment of a It EE T —RAFEFERS
reasonably possible change in exchange rate over HEEARfEHIRZAEE
the period until next annual reporting date. REH) o
(e) Fair values measurement (e) ATEIE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial R-E—+ER T —XE
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are —A=4+—H KEEI%EK
not materially different from their fair values as at AR sy At EN SR T
31 March 2017 and 2016. BEMEREEEENATEE
BmERTRE o
22 COMMITMENTS 22 A

At 31 March 2017, the Group’s total future minimum

RZE—+F=ZA=+—0 £&

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases EEM T RS KL EIE FNAK
were payable as follows: RIETEENTEENAT -

2017 2016
=Bt CZIET—RF
$'000 $'000
T FIT
Within 1 year —F RN 134 876
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA - 134
134 1,010

In Construction Holdings Limited
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22

23

24

COMMITMENTS (continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of an office and
items of office equipment held under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 5 years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2017, the Group had contingent liabilities
in respect of performance bonds to guarantee for
the due and proper performance of the obligation
undertaken by the Group’s subsidiary for projects
amounting to $73,141,000 (2016: $72,225,000) in its
ordinary course of business. The performance bonds
are expected to be released in accordance with the
terms of the respective construction contracts.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances

23

24

HAE (1)
AEBAKCEHERE N HE Bl
RENBAERBEEEREBA -

IR HERE AT F - WATA RR
EFNEClEREESEMAN -8
BHEAOBEIAEE -

HAREE
RZT—tF=A=+—H &%
EEBEAEENBARIRE —RE
HRRPEELEROIAEEAZ
EAEMELERNELREZ KA
B1E/473,141,00070( —Z— X4 ¢
72,225,0007T ) ° JEW%*’*?E,HEH%
RIR S ZEE L BIGETRIRRR

EDNCEYEE

(@) BREMBWMEEMIBOMNE

disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, KR 5 R AR - REER
the Group entered into the following material ANEFERT S LA N B2 K BB
related party transaction during the year: 5
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Rental expenses paid to ANt |7] NG
a related company b 871 737

Note: The directors of the Company are of opinion that the
above transactions were entered into in the normal

course of business.

M : ARREERR/LARZ IR
AR ERBIEPRIL ©

REZFZERARIF
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24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(0

In Construction Holdings Limited

Remuneration of key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the directors as
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid
employees and senior management as disclosed
in note 9, is as follows:

24 EXRBEBERZ (E)

(b)

FEEBRABNHTFM(BE
ENEZESENEEE) RHIFs
E mMETEaSTHEE R
BRERENH MR
WENT :

2017 2016

—E=—+tF —T—RF

$'000 $'000

Fx Fr

Short-term employee benefits EHEESEF 5,116 4,712
Post-employment benefits BERLAE T 70 72
5,186 4,784

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see note 6(b)).

The related party transactions in respect of rental
expenses paid to a related company and the
remuneration of directors and chief executive of
the Company constitute connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, these transactions are exempt from
reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the
remuneration of key management personnel
(other than directors and chief executive) of the
Company did not fall under the definition of
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the
amounts due to shareholders and loans from
shareholders as set out on notes 16 and 18
respectively constitute connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, these transactions are exempt from
reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Annual Report 2017
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st A TEIRA (R
MiEE6(b)) °

HE AR R A
ETHIMNARREERETE
THRABHMABEHEE S
RSB ETRBIE14AZR
EMBERS - A %5
RGEEH R BT EMRANE
YAZE T HR - RERET
FEERBLERE ©

HARNRETEERAB(ES
MEBITHBAEBRIN) HENAE
OB ARSI LTE LH
HAFEUAERENBEERS
WIHEMERS -

EAR R 16 X 18 Fr#f B AR R
FRIE K PR B B B R R B
FRGEK ETRBNE14AE
REWBERS - A > %
ERXGEHGET ETRA
FIAAZE T HR - NERTE
SRR ALERTE ©



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (MAZ TR )

25 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

26

FINANCIAL POSITION

25 NEIEBHZHMBARRE

2017 2016
R o -3 ZE-REF
Note $'000 $'000
B sE Fr Frx
Non-current assets *RBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RITB AR ZIRE 12 —* —*
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUTHT B A RIFUE 119,421 115,821
oo MeaA 115,821
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables  Fa1e I8 J H A e Y 508 10 10
Cash and bank balances Be MRITHS 32,833 63,809
R 32843 63819
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables Hth T F00R (400) (450)
Tax payable FERTIE (190) (104)
_________ (590) _  (554)
Net current assets rBEERE 32,253 62,265
NET ASSETS BEETFE 151,674 179,086
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXRFE 20(a)
Share capital [N 20(0) 8,300 8,300
Reserves G 143,374 170,786
TOTAL EQUITY R 151,674 179,086
* Represents $8 * HE8IT

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE

REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed

in note 20(b).

26 BEFHABRNBREHR

E
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THII7R)

27 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2017 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

27

Notes to the Financial Statements

RBEE=-Z-tH=A
=t+—-HBLEFEEEME
& RAE RIS ET ~ HTR] 2
AR BN TR E

BEEAYBHRENNERE  BEe

ARMAGEEM—RARNINBE_E

—tF=R=+—HIEFERKE

BHHE T R aT 2RI B0 A I 55

B mARP R - ZFIERT R

FTZER B 45 40T AT A8 BL AR 5 [ 45
%o

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

RUTHEHR 2%

BB ETHBRENR

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

BB ERE 7 HenBER - RFHE (E57F)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BRAMBHELAEIS 2@ TA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

EEMBMEENENSS  FEELEA e

HKFRS 16, Leases
HERMBHREENE 6% - HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed
its assessment, further impacts may be identified
in due course and will be taken into consideration
when determining whether to adopt any of these
new requirements before their effective date and
which transitional approach to take, where there
are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.

In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2017

1 January 2017
—Z2—+F—H—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—HA—H

1 January 2018
—Z—-/\$—A—AH

1 January 2019
—ZE-NF—-HA—H

AREE IERHE TR R & R e A H R
MZFERT AT EANTE - 2
SAKBECHBIFATERNE T
| HAI R A M IS MRIEKE
REE - Bt ENE—FPFHEBH
AN o NS B AR TR LY
ity BN R B A) 02 B AR AR R
—ERE - WERRERZFHR
FEER A BT R S RN ER %S H
RE RREF AT ER BB ITER
R RBAEBENEREEBZSE
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27 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 27 RBE=-_ZF—tHF=A

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
including HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which
specifies the accounting for revenue from construction
contracts. The Group is currently assessing the impacts
of adopting HKFRS 15. Based on the preliminary
assessment, one area that will likely be impacted is
the accounting for work in progress. Under HKFRS 15,
the work in progress for an over time performance
obligation is expensed as incurred because control of
the work in progress transfers to the customer as it
progresses and not at discrete intervals. As a result of
this change, it is possible that once the Group adopts
HKFRS 15, the timing when the contract costs are
recognised as expense may be earlier or later than
under the current accounting policy. However, further
analysis is required to determine whether this change
in accounting policy may have a material impact on
the amounts reported in any given financial reporting
period. As the Group has not completed its assessment,
further impacts may be identified.

=t+—-HBLEFEEEME
s RAE RIS ET ~ # ]2
AN REN TR E (&)

ERMBREERNE155% > RE
EEANWE

BAPHREERE 15 FRLER
BEPAKNKRENZEER - TEY
BHmEENFISKEEMRAAR
Wasfl - BREEAGERE 1
WIREAN] (ERETREAY
WENEETRE) NEBERKIE
ERHERAN B BB MELRFE 15
HRE ERVFE - B1RE
ARXFEN—EREAERETRE
VERHRIE - RIBFEBMIERESE
AU 155 BRBEITRBNERT
RIERFIEEEXN AR/RERT
REEGIEZE TIREE M TN
DHOERERETEP - ARRE
B —EREERMBEMBRE
HERE55 - BWRAKARAX
M EHA RN BN E RS
ABRAREE - A FEE—
FER AT NEE S BORE

2 A BB 4ETE B 75 RS B R
IRESRELNEATE - B
REBEN BzTETE - HEER

BRENYE -

REZEZERERAT

ZE-LFER
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Financial Summary

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THII7R)

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is as follows.

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HIEE

AEFEIAEMRFEENEENEER
BEMENT :

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“E-ZF M “T-RF CZ-RXF ZB-tF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Tr
RESULTS %%
Revenue gz 468,117 381,750 386,719 497,303 370,235
Profit before taxation BB AR 95,027 73,136 89,376 111,497 127,797
Income tax GigcEi (15,726) (12,159) (16,723) (19,422) (21,100)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREFIRZE
income for the year WABE 79,301 60,977 72,653 92,075 106,697
At 31 March
R=R=+-H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-= —E-E —T-1% “TxF ZE-tE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T Tr
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEE 349,024 405,244 289,631 440,562 410,794
Total liabilities Bef (207,183) (202,426) (140,850) (109,295) (84,050)
Net assets BEFE 141,841 202,818 148,781 331,267 326,744

This report is published in both English and Chinese
languages. Should there be any inconsistency between the

Chinese and English versions, the English version shall prevail.
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